
Page # 1 of 2 Posted: June 28, 2013 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUES 286.0105:  ANY PERSON WHO DESIRES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION AT THIS MEETING WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR 
THIS PURPOSE MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED, WHICH SUCH 
WRITTEN RECORD IS NOT PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUTE 286.26: PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT LAURA 
SMITH, 300 WEST PLANT STREET, WINTER GARDEN, FL 34787, (407) 656-4111 - 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING. 

 

  
 
 
 
 
To: James Gentry – Chairman 

Jimmy Dunn -  Vice Chairman 
Kent Horsley 
Mark Maciel  
Mac McKinney 
Rohan Ramlackhan 
Eric Weiss  
 

Copy to: Mike Bollhoefer 
   Dan Langley 
   Ed Williams 
   Laura Smith 
   Stephen Pash  
   Kelly Carson 
 

RE: Agenda – July 1, 2013 - 6:30 PM 
Commission Chambers, City Hall 

 300 West Plant Street, Winter Garden 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE JUNE 3, 2013 MEETING 
 
4. PRESENTATION 

 City Attorney  - Sunshine Law, Ex-Parte Communication, and Quasi-Judicial 
Hearings. 

 
 ANNEXATION, REZONING, FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 
5. 12552 Stoneybrook West Parkway – (Lall, Jasmattie) 
 Annexation / FLU Map Amendment / Rezoning 
 Parcel ID # 36-22-27-0000-00-032 
 
6. 1288 N West Crown Point Road – (Crown Point Management) 
 Annexation / FLU Map Amendment / Rezoning 
 Parcel ID # 12-22-27-1840-24-010 
 
7. E Fullers Cross Road – (Maguire, Raymer) 
 Annexation / FLU Map Amendment 
 Parcel ID # 02-22-27-0000-00-002 
 
8. 315 E Fullers Cross Road - (Highland Groves) 
 Rezoning - PUD 
 Parcel ID # 11-22-27-0000-00-003 

For More Information, Contact: 
Laura Smith 

Senior Planner 
City of Winter Garden  
300 West Plant Street 

Winter Garden, FL 34787 
407.656.4111 ext. 2026 

LSmith@wintergarden-fl.gov  

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD AGENDA  

mailto:LSmith@wintergarden-fl.gov


 

Page # 2 of 2 Posted: June 28, 2013 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUES 286.0105:  ANY PERSON WHO DESIRES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION AT THIS MEETING WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR 
THIS PURPOSE MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED, WHICH SUCH 
WRITTEN RECORD IS NOT PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUTE 286.26: PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT LAURA 
SMITH, 300 WEST PLANT STREET, WINTER GARDEN, FL 34787, (407) 656-4111 - 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING. 

 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD AGENDA, CONTINUED…  

 
9. 16303 Marsh Road - (Crooked Lake Preserve) 
 Rezoning – UVPUD 
 Parcel ID # 05-23-27-0000-00-005 & 05-23-27-0000-00-008 
 
10. 55 N Dillard Street – (Welltrax) 
 Rezoning 
 Parcel ID # 14-22-27-2088-00-070 
 
11. Garden Commerce Parkway – (Winter Garden Commerce Center) 
 Rezoning – PID (TO BE TABLED TO AUGUST 5, 2013) 
 Parcel ID # 24-22-27-9385-00-200, 24-22-27-9385-00-190, 24-22-27-9385-00-

180, 24-22-27-9385-00-170, 24-22-27-9385-00-160, 24-22-27-9385-00-120, 24-
22-27-9385-00-110, 24-22-27-9385-00-100, 24-22-27-0000-00-021, 24-22-27-
9385-00-090, 24-22-27-9385-00-080, 24-22-27-9385-00-070, 24-22-27-9385-00-
060, 24-22-27-9385-00-050, 24-22-27-9385-00-040, 24-22-27-9385-00-030, 24-
22-27-9385-00-020, 24-22-27-9385-00-010 

 
 FINAL PLAT / PRELIMINARY PLAT / LOT SPLIT 
 
 

12. Oakland Park Phase II 
 Preliminary Plat 
 Parcel ID # 21-22-27-0000-00-094 
 
13. Waterside at John's Lake 
 Lot Split 
 Parcel ID # 06-23-27-0000-00-003 
  
 
14. ADJOURNMENT 
 

To the next regular Planning and Zoning Board meeting on Monday, August 5, 2013 at 
6:30 p.m. in City Hall Commission Chambers, 300 W. Plant Street, 1st floor. 































THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 4 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  June 28, 2013 MEETING DATE: July 1, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: Presentation 
  
SUMMARY: 
 The Sunshine Law, Quasi-Judicial Proceedings, Ex parte 

Communications as such apply to the City of Winter Garden 
Planning and Zoning Board 

ATTACHMENT(S):  
 City Attorney Memorandum 
 



MEMORANDUM 
 
 

 
TO:  City of Winter Garden Planning and Zoning Board  
 
FROM: A. Kurt Ardaman, City Attorney 
 
DATE: July 1, 2013 
 
RE: The Sunshine Law, Quasi-Judicial Proceedings, Ex parte Communications as 

such apply to the City of Winter Garden Planning and Zoning Board  
  
 
  The following information is an overview of the Government in the Sunshine Law, 

quasi-judicial proceedings and ex parte communications as they affect the Planning and Zoning 

Board and its Members.   

I. Scope of the Sunshine Law 

 Florida’s Government in the Sunshine Law, commonly referred to as the Sunshine Law, 

provides a right of access to governmental proceedings at both the state and local levels.  The 

law is applicable to the City of Winter Garden Planning and Zoning Board and has been applied 

to any gathering of two or more members of the same board to discuss some matter which will 

foreseeably come before that board for action.  There are three basic requirements of section 

286.011, Florida Statutes: 

(1) Reasonable notice of the Planning and Zoning Board meetings must be given;  

(2) Meetings must be open to the public; 

(3) Minutes of the meetings must be taken.  

The key to understanding the Sunshine Law is the recognition of what constitutes a meeting of 

the Planning and Zoning Board.   



Page 2 of 9 
 

Meeting Subject to the Sunshine Law 

 The Sunshine Law is applicable to any gathering, whether formal or casual, of two or 

more Members of the Planning and Zoning Board (“Board”) to discuss some matter on which 

foreseeable action will be taken by the Board.  The law covers not only the discussions and 

deliberations of the Board (as well as any 2 or more members of the Board), but the formal 

action taken by the Board.  There is no requirement that a quorum be present for a meeting 

between the Board Members to be subject to section 286.011, Florida Statutes.   

 Written Correspondence Between Board Members 

The use of written correspondence, including e-mails and texts, prior to a noticed public 

meeting by one Member to discuss with or solicit opinions and comments from other Members 

pertaining to a subject which will, or which may forseeably come before the Board, be discussed 

at a public meeting is a violation of the Sunshine Law.  In addition, written correspondence 

including e-mail and text messages made or received by the Members in connection with official 

business are public records and subject to disclosure under the Public Records Act.  

A Board Member may prepare and circulate an informational memorandum or position 

paper to other Board Members; however, the use of a memorandum to solicit comment from 

other Board Members or the circulation of responsive memoranda by another Board Member 

would violate the Sunshine Law.   If a Board Member responds to another Member’s 

informational memorandum or position paper relating to a matter likely to come before the 

Board, the initial memorandum or position paper and the response would violate the Sunshine 

Law. Thus, to avoid the possibility of another Board Member responding to a position paper or 

informational memorandum in violation of the Sunshine Law, we recommend that Board 



Page 3 of 9 
 

Members not circulate correspondence to other Board Members relating to matters likely to 

come before the Board prior to a public Board meeting.    

 Telephone Conversations 

 The use of a telephone to conduct discussions between Board Members relating to a 

matter or matters likely to come before the Board does not remove the conversation from the 

requirements of section 286.011, Florida Statutes.  

 Use of Computer/E-mail & Cellular Telephones/Texting 

 The use of private or public computers and cellular telephones by Board Members to 

communicate among themselves on issues to come before the Board is subject to the Sunshine 

Law.   E-mail and text messages made or received by a Board Member in connection with 

official business are public records and subject to disclosure in the absence of a statutory 

exemption from public inspection.  Under Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (the Public Records 

Act), it is the nature of the record itself, not its physical location, which determines whether a 

record qualifies as a “public record.”  Emails, texts and other written correspondence made or 

received by a Member in connection with City business are public records and are subject to 

disclosure and proper retention.   If emails and texts are of a purely personal nature and do not 

include information pertaining to the conduct of City business, such emails and texts need not be 

disclosed.  Public records retain their public character and remain subject to public disclosure 

and retention regardless of whether they are stored, sent or received in private or public email 

and texting accounts.  Thus, regardless of where a record is stored, if such record was made in 

connection with the transaction of official City business, such record must be disclosed and 

properly retained unless there exists an applicable statutory exemption.  In addition, information 

stored on a City computer is as much a public record as a written page in a file stored in a filing 



Page 4 of 9 
 

cabinet.  Therefore, it is recommended that you do not use the City e-mail system or use the 

City’s computers to convey personal messages or store personal files that you want kept private.  

 Use of Websites/blogs 

The use of a website blog or message board, including social media websites such as 

Facebook and Twitter, to solicit comment from other Board Members on matters that are likely 

to come before the Board, trigger the requirements of the Sunshine Law.  Such action would 

amount to a discussion of public business through the use of the electronic format without 

appropriate notice, openness to the public, or statutorily required recording of the minutes of the 

meeting. While the mere posting by a Board Member of that Board Member’s position does not 

implicate the Sunshine Law, subsequent postings by other Board Members on the subject of the 

initial posting could be construed as a response which would be subject to the statute. 

   While there is no statutory prohibition against a Board Member posting comments on a 

privately maintained electronic bulletin board or blog or social media websites, nor is there any 

statutory prohibition for a Board Member to serve as a webmaster of such a site, Board Members 

must not engage in an exchange or discussion of matters that foreseeably will come before the 

Board for official action.  The Florida Attorney General has stated that use of such an electronic 

means of posting one's comments and the inherent availability of other participants or 

contributors to act as liaisons between Board Members would create an environment that could 

easily become a forum for Board Members to discuss official issues which should most 

appropriately be conducted at a public meeting in compliance with the Government in the 

Sunshine Law.  It is incumbent upon Board Members to avoid any action that could be construed 

as an attempt to evade the requirements of the law. 



Page 5 of 9 
 

Also, Board Members’ postings on a private website or blogs commenting on matters 

involving City business is subject to the requirements of the Public Records Act. The individual 

Board Member who creates the public documents through e-mails and posted comments on a 

private website or blog would be responsible for ensuring that the information is maintained in 

accordance with the Public Records Law and the City’s retention schedule.  

 Use of Nonmembers as Liaisons Between Board Members 

 The Sunshine Law is applicable to meetings between a Board Member and an individual 

who is not a Board Member if that individual serves as a liaison between, or to conduct a de 

facto meeting of, another Board Member or Members.    

Members of Different Boards 

The Sunshine Law does not apply to a meeting between individuals who are members of 

different boards unless one or more of the individuals has been delegated the authority to act on 

behalf of his board. 

 Social Events 

 Board Members are not prohibited under the Sunshine Law from meeting together 

socially, provided that matters which may come before the Board are not discussed at such 

gatherings. 

   

II. Quasi-judicial Proceedings 

 
 Typically, hearings by the Board are either quasi-judicial or legislative in nature.  It is 

important to know whether a hearing is quasi-judicial or legislative because there are different 

requirements and rules that affect actions by Board Members before and during the hearing and 

challenges to decisions made by the Board after the hearing.   Generally, hearings where the 



Page 6 of 9 
 

Board applies an existing rule or policy (law) affecting a small number of people or a few parcels 

of property to an application and facts before the Board constitutes a quasi-judicial proceeding.   

Where the Board makes recommendations to formulate a general rule or policy (law) which will 

affect many people or properties, the hearing is generally a legislative proceeding.  

 Hearings that relate to development applications, site plans, zoning changes, variances, 

and special exceptions are examples of quasi-judicial proceedings.  Hearings dealing with 

comprehensive plan amendments and the adoption of new ordinances are examples of legislative 

proceedings.  

 The rules and proceedings affecting Board Members and their hearings for legislative 

proceedings are much less stringent than quasi-judicial proceedings.  Therefore, the following 

material applies to quasi-judicial proceedings. 

 When quasi-judicial proceedings occur, due process must be given to the parties 

exceeding the requirements of the Sunshine Law.  The right of due process includes the right to 

reasonable notice, an opportunity to be heard at a hearing, including the right to give and submit 

testimony and evidence at a hearing on the quasi-judicial matter, and for the Board’s 

recommendation to be based on the testimony and competent substantial evidence entered in the 

record at the hearing.       

 The Florida Supreme Court has stated that there is no exception to the Sunshine Law 

which would allow closed-door hearings or deliberations when the Board is acting in a "quasi-

judicial" capacity.  Examples of when quasi-judicial hearings will be conducted by the Board are 

requests for variances, site plans, special exceptions and rezoning approvals affecting a small 

group of individuals or properties.  



Page 7 of 9 
 

 Communications between individual Board Members and parties to quasi-judicial 

proceedings, as well as with others, outside of the context of the public hearing (“ex parte 

communications”) do not violate the Sunshine Law.  Parties to a quasi-judicial proceeding 

include the applicant, persons speaking or submitting evidence for the public hearing and the 

City’s staff.  However, ex-parte communications may constitute a presumptive prejudice against 

another party’s due process rights, which can subject the Board’s action to challenge, unless such 

communications are disclosed during the public hearing concerning.    

 If ex parte communications pertaining to a quasi-judicial matter are sent or received by a 

Board Member, it is necessary that the Member disclose at the public hearing the nature and 

details of the ex parte communication.  Disclosing the ex parte communication at the public 

hearing allows the potentially aggrieved party the opportunity for rebuttal and due process 

protection.  It is recommended that the ex parte communication disclosure occur during the 

public hearing prior to the presentations from the applicant and other persons who desire to 

participate in the public hearing.  

 Inaudible Discussions 

 A violation of the Sunshine Law may occur, if, during the public hearing or during a 

recess of a public hearing Board Members discuss issues before the Board in a manner not 

generally audible to the public attending the meeting.  Therefore, even in the public forum, we 

recommend that Board Members refrain from passing notes or whispering comments between 

other Board Members concerning matters pending or likely to come before the Board.   

Abstaining From Voting at Public Meeting 

Section 286.012, Florida Statutes, provides that no Board Member who is present at any 

Board meeting at which an official decision, ruling, or other official act is to be taken or adopted 



Page 8 of 9 
 

may abstain from voting.  A vote shall be recorded or counted for each Board Member present, 

except when, with respect to any such Board Member, there is, or appears to be, a possible 

conflict of interest, including a Board Member’s special private gain or loss relating to the 

subject matter, prescribed in Chapter 112, Florida Statutes.  Therefore, a Board Member who is 

present at a meeting must vote unless there is, or appears to be a possible conflict of interest, 

including a Board Member’s special private gain or loss, under Chapter 112, Florida Statutes.  

Section 112.3143 requires a Board Member who has a conflict of interest and will abstain from 

voting on the subject matter to, prior to the vote being made, state the nature of the Board 

Member’s conflict and within 15 days after the hearing submit a written memorandum disclosing 

the nature of the conflict which memorandum will be included in the meeting minutes.  

 

III. Penalties for Violating Sunshine Law 

 Criminal Penalties 

 Any Board Member who knowingly violates the Sunshine Law is guilty of a 

misdemeanor of the second-degree.  A person convicted of a second-degree misdemeanor may 

be sentenced to a term of imprisonment not to exceed 60 days and/or fined up to $500. 

 Removal From Office 

 A Board Member who is indicted or informed against for any misdemeanor arising 

directly out of his or her official duties; this includes an allegation of a Sunshine Law violation 

may be suspended.  If convicted, the Board Member may be removed from office. 

 Non-criminal Infractions 

 The Sunshine Law imposes non-criminal penalties for violations of the Sunshine Law by 

providing that any public official violating the provisions of the Sunshine Law is guilty of a non-



Page 9 of 9 
 

criminal infraction, punishable by a fine not exceeding $500.  A non-criminal violation of the 

Sunshine Law does not require a knowingly violation by a Board Member.  Therefore, a Board 

Member need not have intended to circumvent the purpose of the Sunshine Law to have a non-

criminal penalty imposed against the Member.  

 Attorney’s Fees 

 Reasonable attorney's fees will be assessed against the Board if it is found to have 

violated section 286.011, Florida Statutes. Such fees may be assessed against the individual 

Board Members except in those cases where the Board sought, and took, the advice of its 

attorney; such fees may not be assessed against the individual Members. 

  

Civil Actions for Injunctive Relief 

  The Sunshine Law gives the Circuit Court the jurisdiction to issue injunctions enjoining 

any violation of the Sunshine Law.  On a showing by any citizen that the Sunshine Law was 

violated in particular respects, a court may enjoin a future violation that bears some resemblance 

to the past violation. 

Validity of Action Taken in Violation of the Sunshine Law and Subsequent 
Corrective Action 

 
 The Sunshine Law provides that no resolution, rule, regulation or formal action shall be 

considered binding except as taken or made at an open meeting. Recognizing that the Sunshine 

Law should be construed so as to frustrate all evasive devices, the courts have held that action 

taken in violation of the law was void.   

 

 

U:\AKA\CLIENTS\Winter Garden\General W500-20501\Planning and Zoning Board\Memo P & Z Board-Sunshine Law Application 6-19-13.doc 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 5 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  June 28, 2013 MEETING DATE:   July 1, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 12552 Stoneybrook West Parkway (ANNEXATION, ZONING, FLU) 
 PROJECT NAME 12552 Stoneybrook West Parkway 
 PARCEL ID# 36-22-27-0000-00-032 
  

ISSUE: The applicant is requesting Annexation, Initial Zoning, and Future Land 
Use designation on property located at 12552 Stoneybrook West 
Parkway.  

  

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  

OWNER/APPLICANT: Jasmattie Lall 
  

CURRENT ZONING: A-1 (Orange County) 
  

PROPOSED ZONING: R-1 
  

CURRENT FLU: Rural/Agricultural (Orange County) 
  

PROPOSED FLU: Low Density Residential (City) 
  

SUMMARY: 
 The City encourages infill of its jurisdictional limits through 

voluntary annexation of enclaves. The subject property makes up 
a 8.24 ± acre enclave located on the south side of Stoneybrook 
West Parkway, east of Lake Roberts Landing Drive and west of 
Scarlett Sage Court. The applicant has requested Annexation into 
the City and Amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan to designate the property as Urban Village 
and an Initial Zoning of R-1.  (See attached Staff Report).  

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 13-38, Ordinance 13-39, 

and Ordinance 13-40. 
  

NEXT STEP(S):  
 A public meeting for the first reading of the ordinances is 

scheduled for the City Commission on Thursday, July 11, 2013. 
  

ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Ordinance 13-38 
 Ordinance 13-39 

Ordinance 13-40 
 Staff Report 
  
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

12552 Stoneybrook West Parkway 
 

ANNEXATION, REZONING AND FUTURE LAND USE 
 

 

 



 
 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO: PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY: STEVE PASH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE: JUNE 27, 2013 
SUBJECT: ANNEXATION – ZONING – FLU AMENDMENT 
  12552 STONEYBROOK PARKWAY (8.24 +/- ACRES) 
  PARCEL ID #:  36-22-27-0000-00-032 
APPLICANT: JASMATTIE LALL 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property is located at 12552 Stoneybrook West Parkway and is approximately 8.24 ± 
acres. The map below depicts the proximity of the subject property to the City’s jurisdictional 
limits: 

 



12552 Stoneybrook Parkway 
Annexation – FLU Amendment – Zoning - Staff Report 

    July 1, 2013 
Page 2 

 

 
 

 
The applicant has requested annexation into the City, amendment to the Future Land Use Map 
(FLUM) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to designate the property as Low Density Residential 
and an initial zoning of R-1.      
 
In accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, permitted uses within the Low Density 
Residential land use include residential, and churches and schools are allowable uses via a 
Special Exception Permit.   The zoning classifications that are consistent with the Low Density 
Residential classification are PUD, R-1A, R-1, R-2, R-1B, and INT. 
 
The City endorses infill of its jurisdictional limits through voluntary annexation of enclaves. The 
elimination of enclaves through voluntary annexation furthers the goals, objectives, and policies 
of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
EXISTING USE 
The subject property is currently developed with a single-family home and an out building. 
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The property located to the north is a single-family home, zoned R-1 and located in the City. The 
property located to the east is a single-family home, zoned R-1 and located in the City. The 
property to the south is wetlands that are owned by the property to the west, zoned A-1 and 
located in Orange County.  The The property to the west is developed with a single-family 
house, zoned A-1 and located in Orange County. 
 
PROPOSED USE 
The applicant intends to annex the property, connect to City sewer and water, and continue using 
it as their primary residence.      
 
PUBLIC FACILITY ANALYSIS 
The City will provide garbage collection, police protection, and all other services regularly 
provided to City of Winter Garden residents including building permits. The property will be 
served by both Orange County Fire and Rescue and the City of Winter Garden Fire Department 
under the First Response System. 
 
SUMMARY 
Annexation will provide a more efficient delivery of services to the property and further the 
goals and objectives of the City of Winter Garden’s Comprehensive Plan to eliminate enclaves. 
City Staff recommends approval of the proposed Ordinances. 
 
 
 



12552 Stoneybrook Parkway 
Annexation – FLU Amendment – Zoning - Staff Report 

    July 1, 2013 
Page 3 

 

 
 

MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
 

12552 Stoneybrook West Parkway 
 

 



12552 Stoneybrook Parkway 
Annexation – FLU Amendment – Zoning - Staff Report 

    July 1, 2013 
Page 4 

 

 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
12552 Stoneybrook West Parkway 

 

 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 
 

Subject property changed 
from Orange County 

Rural/Agricultural to City 
Low Density Residential 



 
Ordinance 13-38 

Page 1 of 3 
 

ORDINANCE 13-38 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA PROVIDING FOR THE ANNEXATION OF 
CERTAIN ADDITIONAL LANDS GENERALLY DESCRIBED 
AS APPROXIMATELY 8.24 ± ACRES LOCATED AT 12552 
STONEYBROOK WEST PARKWAY, ON THE SOUTH 
SIDE OF STONEYBROOK PARKWAY, EAST OF LAKE 
ROBERTS LANDING DRIVE, AND WEST OF SCARLETT 
SAGE COURT INTO THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
FLORIDA; REDEFINING THE CITY BOUNDARIES TO 
GIVE THE CITY JURISDICTION OVER SAID PROPERTY; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of the land, generally described as approximately 8.24 ± 
acres located at 12552 Stoneybrook West Parkway, east of Lake Roberts Landing Drive, 
and west of Scarlett Sage Court and legally described in Section 2 of this Ordinance, 
which land is reasonably compact and contiguous to the corporate limits of the City of 
Winter Garden, Florida (“City”), has, pursuant to the prerequisites and standards set 
forth in § 171.044, Fla. Stat., petitioned the City Commission for voluntary annexation; 
 
 WHEREAS, the petition for voluntary annexation referenced herein bears the 
signatures of all owners of the property or properties described in Section 2 of this 
Ordinance (i.e., the property or properties to be annexed); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the property described in Section 2 of 
this Ordinance is located in an unincorporated area of the County and that annexation 
of such property will not result in the creation of an enclave.   
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Annexation.  That the City Commission through its Planning and 
Zoning Board has conducted an investigation to determine whether the described 
property meets the prerequisites and standards set forth in Chapter 171, Fla. Stat. and 
has held a public hearing and said petition and made certain findings.  
 
 SECTION 2: Description of Area Annexed.  That, after said public hearing and 
having found such petition meets said prerequisites and standards, the property legally 
defined in ATTACHMENT “A” and graphically shown on the attached map shall be 
annexed into the City of Winter Garden, Florida.  
 
 SECTION 3: Effect of Annexation.  That the City of Winter Garden, Florida, shall 
have all of the power, authority, and jurisdiction over and within the land as described in 
Section 2 hereof, and the inhabitants thereof, and property therein, as it does and have 



 
Ordinance 13-38 

Page 2 of 3 
 

over its present corporate limits and laws, ordinances, and resolutions of said City shall 
apply and shall have equal force and effect as if all territory had been part of said City at 
the time of the passage of such laws, ordinances, and resolutions. 
 
 SECTION 4: Apportionment of Debts and Taxes.  Pursuant to § 171.061, Fla. 
Stat., the area annexed to the City shall be subject to all taxes and debts of the City upon 
the effective date of annexation. However, the annexed area shall not be subject to 
municipal ad valorem taxation for the current year if the effective date of the annexation 
falls after the City levies such tax. 
 
 SECTION 5:  Instructions to Clerk.  Within seven (7) days following the adoption of 
this Ordinance, the City Clerk or his/her designee is directed to file a copy of this 
ordinance, including ATTACHMENT “A” hereto, with the clerk of the circuit court and the 
chief administrative officer of Orange County as required by § 171.044(3), Fla. Stat.  
 
 SECTION 6:  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 
then such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 7:  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
adoption at its second reading. 
 
FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
, 2013. 

 
ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 

 



 
Ordinance 13-38 

Page 3 of 3 
 

ATTACHMENT "A" 
  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
DESCRIPTION: (PARCEL ID#36-22-27-0000-00-032) 
 
THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 (LESS THE WEST 
1278 FT THEREOF) AND THAT PART OF THE WEST 3/4 OF SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF 
SOUTHEAST 1/4 SEC 36-22-27 ALL LYING NORTHERLY AND EASTERLY OF THE 
FOLLOWING DESC LANDS: BEGIN AT SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SOUTHEAST 1/4 
OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION, THENCE RUN S88-42-04W 256.59 FT, 
THENCE N00-37-05W 1332.48 FT, THENCE N88-58-00E 208.7 FT, THENCE S00-37-
05E 346 FT, THENCE N88-57-41E 49.48 FT, THENCE S00-31-27E 985.31 FT TO 
POINT OF BEGINNING & THE SOUTH 985.27 FT OF WEST 3/4 OF SOUTHWEST 
1/4 OF SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SEC 36-22-27 (REF DB 633/412 & ORB 4013/2199). 



 
Ordinance 13-39 

Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE 13-39 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF 
THE WINTER GARDEN COMPREHENSIVE PLAN BY 
CHANGING THE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF REAL 
PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS 8.24 ± ACRES 
LOCATED AT 12552 STONEYBROOK WEST PARKWAY, 
ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF STONEYBROOK PARKWAY, 
EAST OF LAKE ROBERTS LANDING DRIVE, AND WEST 
OF SCARLETT SAGE COURT FROM ORANGE COUNTY 
RURAL/AGRICULTURAL TO CITY LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 13th of June, 1991, the City Commission of the City of Winter 
Garden adopted Ordinance 91-16 which adopted a new Comprehensive Plan for the City 
of Winter Garden, and on the 24th of June, 2010, the City Commission of the City of 
Winter Garden adopted Ordinance 10-19 readopting and amending the Comprehensive 
Plan for the City of Winter Garden; 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 8.24 ± 
acres located AT 12552 Stoneybrook West Parkway, on the south side of Stoneybrook 
West Parkway, east of Lake Roberts Landing Drive and west of Scarlett Sage Court, and 
legally described in ATTACHMENT “A” (the “Property”) has petitioned the City to 
amend the Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan to change the Future Land Use 
classification from Orange County Rural/Agricultural to City Low Density Residential; 
and 

  
 WHEREAS, the City of Winter Garden's Local Planning Agency and City 
Commission have conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings pursuant to 
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, regarding the adoption of this ordinance; now, therefore, 
 
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 
SECTION I.  FLUM Amendment.  The City of Winter Garden hereby amends the Future 
Land Use Map of the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan by designating the 
aforesaid Property to City Conservation as set forth in ATTACHMENT "B".  
 
SECTION II.   Effective Date.  Provided that the Property described herein is annexed 
into the City of Winter Garden pursuant to Ordinance 13-38, this Ordinance shall become 
effective 31 days after adoption, unless the Ordinance is timely challenged pursuant to § 
163.3187(5), Fla. Stat., in which case, the Ordinance shall not be effective until the state 



 
Ordinance 13-39 

Page 2 of 4 

land planning agency or the Administrative Commission, respectively, issues a final order 
determining that the adopted Ordinance is in compliance. 
  
SECTION III.  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, then 
such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
  
FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
, 2013. 

 
ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 
 



 
Ordinance 13-39 

Page 3 of 4 

ATTACHMENT "A" 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
DESCRIPTION: (PARCEL ID#36-22-27-0000-00-032) 
 
THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 (LESS THE WEST 
1278 FT THEREOF) AND THAT PART OF THE WEST 3/4 OF SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF 
SOUTHEAST 1/4 SEC 36-22-27 ALL LYING NORTHERLY AND EASTERLY OF THE 
FOLLOWING DESC LANDS: BEGIN AT SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SOUTHEAST 1/4 
OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION, THENCE RUN S88-42-04W 256.59 FT, 
THENCE N00-37-05W 1332.48 FT, THENCE N88-58-00E 208.7 FT, THENCE S00-37-
05E 346 FT, THENCE N88-57-41E 49.48 FT, THENCE S00-31-27E 985.31 FT TO 
POINT OF BEGINNING & THE SOUTH 985.27 FT OF WEST 3/4 OF SOUTHWEST 
1/4 OF SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SEC 36-22-27 (REF DB 633/412 & ORB 4013/2199).



 
Ordinance 13-39 

Page 4 of 4 

ATTACHMENT "B" 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

PARCEL ID#36-22-27-0000-00-032 
 

 

Subject property changed from Orange County 
Rural/Agricultural to City Low Density Residential 



 
Ordinance 13-40 

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE 13-40 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA REZONING APPROXIMATELY 8.24 ± ACRES 
LOCATED AT 12552 STONEYBROOK WEST PARKWAY, ON 
THE SOUTH SIDE OF STONEYBROOK PARKWAY, EAST OF 
LAKE ROBERTS LANDING DRIVE, AND WEST OF SCARLETT 
SAGE COURT FROM ORANGE COUNTY A-1 
CITRUS/AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO CITY R-1  
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 8.24 ± acres 
located AT 12552 Stoneybrook West Parkway, on the south side of Stoneybrook West Parkway, 
east of Lake Roberts Landing Drive and west of Scarlett Sage Court, and legally described in 
Section 1 of this ordinance has petitioned the City to rezone said property from Orange County 
A-1 Citrus Agricultural to the City’s R-1 Residential District zoning classification, therefore; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the City 
Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the rezoning approved by 
this Ordinance is consistent with the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, further, the City Commission finds that based on competent, substantial 
evidence in the record, the rezoning approved by this Ordinance meets all applicable criteria for 
rezoning the Property to R-1 Residential District contained within the City of Winter Garden 
Comprehensive Plan and the Code of Ordinances.  
 

  
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Rezoning.  The above “Whereas” clauses constitute findings by the City 
Commission.  After due notice and public hearing, the zoning classification of real property 
legally described on ATTACHMENT “A,” is hereby rezoned from Orange County A-1 Citrus 
Agricultural District to City R-1 Residential District in the City of Winter Garden, Florida.  
 
 SECTION 2: Zoning Map.  The City Planner is hereby authorized and directed to amend 
the Official Winter Garden Zoning Map in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 
 
 SECTION 3: Non-Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 
then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void. 
 
 SECTION 4: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective simultaneously upon 
the effective date of Ordinance 13-39 which is an amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the 
City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan that allows the property described herein to be zoned 
as provided in this Ordinance. 
  

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  
 

, 2013. 
 
 



 
Ordinance 13-40 

Page 2 of 3 

 
ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the City of 
Winter Garden, Florida. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 



 
Ordinance 13-40 

Page 3 of 3 

ATTACHMENT "A" 
  

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
DESCRIPTION: (PARCEL ID#36-22-27-0000-00-032) 
 
THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 (LESS THE WEST 
1278 FT THEREOF) AND THAT PART OF THE WEST 3/4 OF SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF 
SOUTHEAST 1/4 SEC 36-22-27 ALL LYING NORTHERLY AND EASTERLY OF THE 
FOLLOWING DESC LANDS: BEGIN AT SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SOUTHEAST 1/4 
OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION, THENCE RUN S88-42-04W 256.59 FT, 
THENCE N00-37-05W 1332.48 FT, THENCE N88-58-00E 208.7 FT, THENCE S00-37-
05E 346 FT, THENCE N88-57-41E 49.48 FT, THENCE S00-31-27E 985.31 FT TO 
POINT OF BEGINNING & THE SOUTH 985.27 FT OF WEST 3/4 OF SOUTHWEST 
1/4 OF SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SEC 36-22-27 (REF DB 633/412 & ORB 4013/2199). 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 6 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  June 28, 2013 MEETING DATE:   July 1, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 1288 North West Crown Point Road (ANNEXATION, FLU, ZONING) 
 PROJECT NAME 1288 North West Crown Point Road 
 PARCEL ID# 12-22-27-1840-24-010 
  

ISSUE: The applicant is requesting Annexation, Future Lands Use designation, 
and Initial Zoning on property located at 1288 North West Crown Point 
Road.  

  

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  

OWNER/APPLICANT: Tingih Hsu 
  

CURRENT ZONING: A-1 (Orange County) 
  

PROPOSED ZONING: R-1 
  

CURRENT FLU: Low Density Residential (Orange County) 
  

PROPOSED FLU: Low Density Residential (City) 
  

SUMMARY: 
 The City encourages infill of its jurisdictional limits through 

voluntary annexation of enclaves. The subject property makes up 
a 1.0 ± acre enclave located on the west side of North West 
Crown Point Road, north of Macy Du Lane, south of East Fullers 
Cross Road, and west of Third Avenue. The applicant has 
requested Annexation into the City, Amendment to the Future 
Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to designate the 
property as Low Density Residential, and an Initial Zoning of R-1 
(See attached Staff Report).  

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 13-35, Ordinance 13-36, 

and Ordinance 13-37. 
  

NEXT STEP(S):  
 A public meeting for the first reading of the ordinances is 

scheduled for the City Commission on Thursday, July 11, 2013. 
  

ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Ordinance 13-35 
 Ordinance 13-36 

Ordinance 13-37 
 Staff Report 
  
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

1288 N West Crown Point Road 
 

ANNEXATION, REZONING AND FUTURE LAND USE 
 

 

 



 
 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO: PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY: STEVE PASH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE: JUNE 25, 2013 
SUBJECT: ANNEXATION – ZONING – FLU AMENDMENT 
  1288 NORTH WEST CROWN POINT ROAD (1.0 +/- ACRES) 
  PARCEL ID #:  12-22-27-1840-24-010 
APPLICANT: TINGIH HSU 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property is located at 1288 North West Crown Point Road and is approximately 1.0 
± acres. The map below depicts the proximity of the subject property to the City’s jurisdictional 
limits: 

 



1288 North West Crown Point Road 
Annexation – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    July 1, 2013 
Page 2 

 

 
 

 
The property is located on the west side of North West Crown Point Road, north of Macy Du 
Lane, and south of East Fullers Cross Road and is located within the Joint Planning Area with 
the City of Winter Garden and Orange County.   
 
The applicant has requested annexation into the City, amendment to the Future Land Use Map 
(FLUM) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to designate the property as Low Density Residential 
and an initial zoning of R-1.      
 
In accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, permitted uses within the Low Density 
Residential land use include residential, and churches and schools are allowable uses via a 
Special Exception Permit.   The zoning classifications that are consistent with the Low Density 
Residential classification are PUD, R-1A, R-1, R-2, R-1B, and INT. 
 
The City endorses infill of its jurisdictional limits through voluntary annexation of enclaves. The 
elimination of enclaves through voluntary annexation furthers the goals, objectives, and policies 
of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
EXISTING USE 
The subject property is currently developed with seven (7) single-family homes, two were  built 
in 1930 and the other four in 1946.   
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The property located to the north is a single-family home, zoned A-1 and located in Orange 
County. The property located to the east is a single-family home, zoned A-1 and located in 
Orange County. The property to the south is a single-family home, zoned R-1 and located in the 
City.  The properties to the west are developed with single-family houses, zoned R-1 and located 
in the City.  R-1 is the predominant zoning in the City of Winter Garden. 
 
PROPOSED USE 
The applicant intends to annex the property, make numerous improvements to the houses, 
connect them to city water and sewer, and continue renting the homes.    
 
PUBLIC FACILITY ANALYSIS 
The City will provide garbage collection, police protection, and all other services regularly 
provided to City of Winter Garden residents including building permits. The property will be 
served by both Orange County Fire and Rescue and the City of Winter Garden Fire Department 
under the First Response System. 
 
 
 



1288 North West Crown Point Road 
Annexation – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    July 1, 2013 
Page 3 

 

 
 

SUMMARY 
Annexation will provide a more efficient delivery of services to the property and further the 
goals and objectives of the City of Winter Garden’s Comprehensive Plan to eliminate enclaves. 
City Staff recommends approval of the proposed Ordinances. 
 
 
MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
 

1288 North West Crown Point Road 
 
 



1288 North West Crown Point Road 
Annexation – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    July 1, 2013 
Page 4 

 

 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
1288 North West Crown Point Road 

 

 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 
 

Subject property changed from 
Orange County Low Density 

Residential to City Low Density 
Residential 



 
Ordinance 13-35 

Page 1 of 3 
 

ORDINANCE 13-35 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA PROVIDING FOR THE ANNEXATION OF 
CERTAIN ADDITIONAL LANDS GENERALLY DESCRIBED 
AS APPROXIMATELY 1.0 ± ACRES LOCATED AT 1288 
NORTH WEST CROWN POINT ROAD, ON THE WEST 
SIDE OF NORTH WEST CROWN POINT ROAD, NORTH 
OF MACY DU LANE, SOUTH OF EAST FULLERS CROSS 
ROAD, AND WEST OF THIRD AVENUE INTO THE CITY 
OF WINTER GARDEN FLORIDA; REDEFINING THE CITY 
BOUNDARIES TO GIVE THE CITY JURISDICTION OVER 
SAID PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of the land, generally described as approximately 1.0 ± 
acres located on the west side of North West Crown Point Road, north of Macy Du Lane, 
south of East Fullers Cross Road, and west of Third Avenue and legally described in 
Section 2 of this Ordinance, which land is reasonably compact and contiguous to the 
corporate limits of the City of Winter Garden, Florida (“City”), has, pursuant to the 
prerequisites and standards set forth in § 171.044, Fla. Stat., petitioned the City 
Commission for voluntary annexation; 
 
 WHEREAS, the petition for voluntary annexation referenced herein bears the 
signatures of all owners of the property or properties described in Section 2 of this 
Ordinance (i.e., the property or properties to be annexed); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the property described in Section 2 of 
this Ordinance is located in an unincorporated area of the County and that annexation 
of such property will not result in the creation of an enclave.   
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Annexation.  That the City Commission through its Planning and 
Zoning Board has conducted an investigation to determine whether the described 
property meets the prerequisites and standards set forth in Chapter 171, Fla. Stat. and 
has held a public hearing and said petition and made certain findings.  
 
 SECTION 2: Description of Area Annexed.  That, after said public hearing and 
having found such petition meets said prerequisites and standards, the property legally 
defined in ATTACHMENT “A” and graphically shown on the attached map shall be 
annexed into the City of Winter Garden, Florida.  
 
 SECTION 3: Effect of Annexation.  That the City of Winter Garden, Florida, shall 
have all of the power, authority, and jurisdiction over and within the land as described in 



 
Ordinance 13-35 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Section 2 hereof, and the inhabitants thereof, and property therein, as it does and have 
over its present corporate limits and laws, ordinances, and resolutions of said City shall 
apply and shall have equal force and effect as if all territory had been part of said City at 
the time of the passage of such laws, ordinances, and resolutions. 
 
 SECTION 4: Apportionment of Debts and Taxes.  Pursuant to § 171.061, Fla. 
Stat., the area annexed to the City shall be subject to all taxes and debts of the City upon 
the effective date of annexation. However, the annexed area shall not be subject to 
municipal ad valorem taxation for the current year if the effective date of the annexation 
falls after the City levies such tax. 
 
 SECTION 5:  Instructions to Clerk.  Within seven (7) days following the adoption of 
this Ordinance, the City Clerk or his/her designee is directed to file a copy of this 
ordinance, including ATTACHMENT “A” hereto, with the clerk of the circuit court and the 
chief administrative officer of Orange County as required by § 171.044(3), Fla. Stat.  
 
 SECTION 6:  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 
then such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 7:  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
adoption at its second reading. 
 
FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
, 2013. 

 
ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 

 



 
Ordinance 13-35 

Page 3 of 3 
 

ATTACHMENT "A" 
  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
DESCRIPTION: (PARCEL ID#12-22-27-1840-24-010) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: BEGIN AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 5, BLOCK 
“13”, TOWN OF CROWN POINT, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK C, PAGE 33, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE S 25 08’ 30” W, 260.68’, THENCE S 89 49’ 58” W, 
5.19’, THENCE S 00 37’ 46” W, 11.30’, S 25 08’ 30” W, 161.47’; THENCE N 89 50’ 20” 
W, BEGINNING.  (LESS R/W TAKEN IN OR.BK.9805, PG. 4638) 
 
THE ABOVE REFERENCED PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONE ‘X’, AREA OF 
MINIMAL FLOODING, AS PER F.I.R.M., COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 12095C0205 F, 
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  MAP DATED SEPTEMBER 25, 2009. 



 
Ordinance 13-36 

Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE 13-36 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF 
THE WINTER GARDEN COMPREHENSIVE PLAN BY 
CHANGING THE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF REAL 
PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS 1.0 ± ACRES 
LOCATED AT 1288 NORTH WEST CROWN POINT ROAD 
ON THE WEST SIDE OF NORTH WEST CROWN POINT 
ROAD, NORTH OF MACY DU LANE, SOUTH OF EAST 
FULLERS CROSS ROAD, AND WEST OF THIRD AVENUE 
FROM ORANGE COUNTY LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 
TO CITY LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 13th of June, 1991, the City Commission of the City of Winter 
Garden adopted Ordinance 91-16 which adopted a new Comprehensive Plan for the City 
of Winter Garden, and on the 24th of June, 2010, the City Commission of the City of 
Winter Garden adopted Ordinance 10-19 readopting and amending the Comprehensive 
Plan for the City of Winter Garden; 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 1.0 ± 
acres located on the west side of North West Crown Point Road, north of Macy Du Lane, 
south of East Fullers Cross Road, and west of Third Avenue, and legally described in 
ATTACHMENT “A” (the “Property”) has petitioned the City to amend the Winter Garden 
Comprehensive Plan to change the Future Land Use classification from Orange County 
Low Density Residential to City Low Density Residential; and 

  
 WHEREAS, the City of Winter Garden's Local Planning Agency and City 
Commission have conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings pursuant to 
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, regarding the adoption of this ordinance; now, therefore, 
 
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 
SECTION I.  FLUM Amendment.  The City of Winter Garden hereby amends the Future 
Land Use Map of the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan by designating the 
aforesaid Property to City Low Density Residential as set forth in ATTACHMENT "B".  
 
SECTION II.   Effective Date.  Provided that the Property described herein is annexed 
into the City of Winter Garden pursuant to Ordinance 13-35 this Ordinance shall become 
effective 31 days after adoption, unless the Ordinance is timely challenged pursuant to § 
163.3187(5), Fla. Stat., in which case, the Ordinance shall not be effective until the state 
land planning agency or the Administrative Commission, respectively, issues a final order 



 
Ordinance 13-36 

Page 2 of 4 

determining that the adopted Ordinance is in compliance. 
  
SECTION III.  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, then 
such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
  
FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
, 2013. 

 
ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 
 



 
Ordinance 13-36 

Page 3 of 4 

ATTACHMENT "A" 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
DESCRIPTION: (PARCEL ID#12-22-27-1840-24-010) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: BEGIN AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 5, BLOCK 
“13”, TOWN OF CROWN POINT, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK C, PAGE 33, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE S 25 08’ 30” W, 260.68’, THENCE S 89 49’ 58” W, 
5.19’, THENCE S 00 37’ 46” W, 11.30’, S 25 08’ 30” W, 161.47’; THENCE N 89 50’ 20” 
W, BEGINNING.  (LESS R/W TAKEN IN OR.BK.9805, PG. 4638) 
 
THE ABOVE REFERENCED PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONE ‘X’, AREA OF 
MINIMAL FLOODING, AS PER F.I.R.M., COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 12095C0205 F, 
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  MAP DATED SEPTEMBER 25, 2009.



 
Ordinance 13-36 

Page 4 of 4 

ATTACHMENT "B" 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

PARCEL ID#12-22-27-1840-24-010 
 

 

Subject property changed from Orange County 
Low Density Residential to City Low Density 

 



 
Ordinance 13-37 

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE 13-37 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA REZONING APPROXIMATELY 1.0 ± ACRES 
LOCATED AT 12288 NORTH WEST CROWN ON THE WEST 
SIDE OF NORTH WEST CROWN POINT ROAD, NORTH OF 
MACY DU LANE, SOUTH OF EAST FULLERS CROSS ROAD, 
AND WEST OF THIRD AVENUE FROM ORANGE COUNTY A-1 
CITRUS/AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO CITY R-1 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 1.0 ± acres of 
land located on the west side of North West Crown Point Road, north of Macy Du Lane, south of 
East Fullers Cross Road, and west of Third Avenue, and legally described in Section 1 of this 
ordinance has petitioned the City to rezone said property from Orange County A-1 Citrus 
Agricultural to the City’s R-1 Residential District zoning classification, therefore; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the City 
Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the rezoning approved by 
this Ordinance is consistent with the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, further, the City Commission finds that based on competent, substantial 
evidence in the record, the rezoning approved by this Ordinance meets all applicable criteria for 
rezoning the Property to R-1 Residential District contained within the City of Winter Garden 
Comprehensive Plan and the Code of Ordinances.  
 

  
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Rezoning.  The above “Whereas” clauses constitute findings by the City 
Commission.  After due notice and public hearing, the zoning classification of real property 
legally described on ATTACHMENT “A,” is hereby rezoned from Orange County A-1 Citrus 
Agricultural District to City R-1 Residential District in the City of Winter Garden, Florida.  
 
 SECTION 2: Zoning Map.  The City Planner is hereby authorized and directed to amend 
the Official Winter Garden Zoning Map in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 
 
 SECTION 3: Non-Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 
then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void. 
 
 SECTION 4: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective simultaneously upon 
the effective date of Ordinance 13-36 which is an amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the 
City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan that allows the property described herein to be zoned 
as provided in this Ordinance. 
  

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  
 

, 2013. 
 
 



 
Ordinance 13-37 

Page 2 of 3 

 
ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the City of 
Winter Garden, Florida. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 



 
Ordinance 13-37 

Page 3 of 3 

ATTACHMENT "A" 
  

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
DESCRIPTION: (PARCEL ID#12-22-27-1840-24-010) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: BEGIN AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 5, BLOCK 
“13”, TOWN OF CROWN POINT, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK C, PAGE 33, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE S 25 08’ 30” W, 260.68’, THENCE S 89 49’ 58” W, 
5.19’, THENCE S 00 37’ 46” W, 11.30’, S 25 08’ 30” W, 161.47’; THENCE N 89 50’ 20” 
W, BEGINNING.  (LESS R/W TAKEN IN OR.BK.9805, PG. 4638) 
 
THE ABOVE REFERENCED PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONE ‘X’, AREA OF 
MINIMAL FLOODING, AS PER F.I.R.M., COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 12095C0205 F, 
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  MAP DATED SEPTEMBER 25, 2009. 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 7 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  June 28, 2013 MEETING DATE:   July 1, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: East Fullers Cross Road – Highland Groves (ANNEXATION, FLU) 
 PROJECT NAME Highland Groves North 
 PARCEL ID# 02-22-27-0000-00-002 
  

ISSUE: The applicant is requesting Annexation and Future Lands Use designation 
on property located north of the intersection on North Fullers Cross Road 
and East Fullers Cross Road.  

  

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  

OWNER/APPLICANT: Raymer Maguire III 
  

CURRENT ZONING: A-2 (Orange County) 
  

PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  

CURRENT FLU: Rural/Agricultural (Orange County) 
  

PROPOSED FLU: Conservation (City) 
  

SUMMARY: 
 The City encourages infill of its jurisdictional limits through 

voluntary annexation of enclaves. The subject property makes up 
a 32.884 ± acre enclave located north of the intersection of North 
Fullers Cross road and east Fullers Cross Road. The applicant 
has requested Annexation into the City and Amendment to the 
Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to 
designate the property as Conservation.  The property will not 
have a zoning designation through this application (See attached 
Staff Report).  

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 13-33 and Ordinance 

13-34. 
  

NEXT STEP(S):  
 A public meeting for the first reading of the ordinances is 

scheduled for the City Commission on Thursday, July 11, 2013. 
  

ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Ordinance 13-33 
 Ordinance 13-34 
 Staff Report 
  
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

E Fullers Cross Road 
 

ANNEXATION AND FUTURE LAND USE 
 

 

 



 
 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO: PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY: STEVE PASH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE: JUNE 27, 2013 
SUBJECT: ANNEXATION – FLU AMENDMENT 
  EAST FULLERS CROSS RAOD (32.884 +/- ACRES) 
  PORTION OF PARCEL ID #:  02-22-27-0000-00-002 
APPLICANT: RAYMER MAQUIRE III 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property is located north of the intersection of North Fullers Cross Road and East 
Fullers Cross Road and is approximately 32.884 ± acres. The map below depicts the proximity of 
the subject property to the City’s jurisdictional limits: 

 



East Fullers Cross (Highland Groves – North) 
Annexation – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    July 1, 2013 
Page 2 

 

 
 

 
The applicant has requested annexation into the City and amendment to the Future Land Use 
Map (FLUM) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to designate the property as Conservation.  At 
this time, no zoning will be applied to the property.    
 
In accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, property assigned the Conservation land use 
designation shall be lands that are natural resources. It is the intent of this land use designation to 
provide for the long term protection and preservation of environmentally sensitive natural 
resources systems. Development shall be limited to passive recreation facilities such as 
boardwalk or conservation related facilities such monitoring facilities or educational trails. The 
developer of land adjacent to areas designated with the Conservation land use shall bear the 
burden of proof in determining that proposed development will not adversely impact 
conservation resources. The zoning classifications that is consistent with the Conservation 
classification is CON and INT. 
 
The City endorses infill of its jurisdictional limits through voluntary annexation of enclaves. The 
elimination of enclaves through voluntary annexation furthers the goals, objectives, and policies 
of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
EXISTING USE 
The subject property is wooded vacant land. 
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The property located to the north is Lake Apopka. The property located to the east is 
undeveloped wooded wetland, zoned A-2 and located in Orange County. The property to the 
south is an orange grove, zoned R-1 (currently being rezoned to PUD), and located in Winter 
Garden.  The property to the west is Lake Apopka. 
 
PROPOSED USE 
The applicant intends to annex the property and keep it as a conservation tract.    
 
PUBLIC FACILITY ANALYSIS 
The City will provide garbage collection, police protection, and all other services regularly 
provided to City of Winter Garden residents including building permits. The property will be 
served by both Orange County Fire and Rescue and the City of Winter Garden Fire Department 
under the First Response System. 
 
SUMMARY 
Annexation will provide a more efficient delivery of services to the property and further the 
goals and objectives of the City of Winter Garden’s Comprehensive Plan to eliminate enclaves. 
City Staff recommends approval of the proposed Ordinances. 



East Fullers Cross (Highland Groves – North) 
Annexation – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    July 1, 2013 
Page 3 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
 

East Fullers Cross Road (Highland Groves – North) 
 
 



East Fullers Cross (Highland Groves – North) 
Annexation – FLU Amendment - Staff Report 

    July 1, 2013 
Page 4 

 

 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
East Fullers Cross Road (Highland Groves - North) 

 

 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 

Subject property changed 
from Orange County 

Rural/Agricultural to City 
Conservation 



 
Ordinance 13-33 

Page 1 of 3 
 

ORDINANCE 13-33 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA PROVIDING FOR THE ANNEXATION OF 
CERTAIN ADDITIONAL LANDS GENERALLY DESCRIBED 
AS APPROXIMATELY 32.884 ± ACRES LOCATED NORTH 
OF THE INTERSECTION OF NORTH FULLERS CROSS 
ROAD AND EAST FULLERS CROSS ROAD INTO THE 
CITY OF WINTER GARDEN FLORIDA; REDEFINING THE 
CITY BOUNDARIES TO GIVE THE CITY JURISDICTION 
OVER SAID PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of the land, generally described as approximately 32.884 ± 
acres located on the north of the intersection of North Fullers Cross Road and East 
Fullers Cross Road and legally described in Section 2 of this Ordinance, which land is 
reasonably compact and contiguous to the corporate limits of the City of Winter 
Garden, Florida (“City”), has, pursuant to the prerequisites and standards set forth in § 
171.044, Fla. Stat., petitioned the City Commission for voluntary annexation; 
 
 WHEREAS, the petition for voluntary annexation referenced herein bears the 
signatures of all owners of the property or properties described in Section 2 of this 
Ordinance (i.e., the property or properties to be annexed); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the property described in Section 2 of 
this Ordinance is located in an unincorporated area of the County and that annexation 
of such property will not result in the creation of an enclave.   
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Annexation.  That the City Commission through its Planning and 
Zoning Board has conducted an investigation to determine whether the described 
property meets the prerequisites and standards set forth in Chapter 171, Fla. Stat. and 
has held a public hearing and said petition and made certain findings.  
 
 SECTION 2: Description of Area Annexed.  That, after said public hearing and 
having found such petition meets said prerequisites and standards, the property legally 
defined in ATTACHMENT “A” and graphically shown on the attached map shall be 
annexed into the City of Winter Garden, Florida.  
 
 SECTION 3: Effect of Annexation.  That the City of Winter Garden, Florida, shall 
have all of the power, authority, and jurisdiction over and within the land as described in 
Section 2 hereof, and the inhabitants thereof, and property therein, as it does and have 
over its present corporate limits and laws, ordinances, and resolutions of said City shall 
apply and shall have equal force and effect as if all territory had been part of said City at 



 
Ordinance 13-33 

Page 2 of 3 
 

the time of the passage of such laws, ordinances, and resolutions. 
 
 SECTION 4: Apportionment of Debts and Taxes.  Pursuant to § 171.061, Fla. 
Stat., the area annexed to the City shall be subject to all taxes and debts of the City upon 
the effective date of annexation. However, the annexed area shall not be subject to 
municipal ad valorem taxation for the current year if the effective date of the annexation 
falls after the City levies such tax. 
 
 SECTION 5:  Instructions to Clerk.  Within seven (7) days following the adoption of 
this Ordinance, the City Clerk or his/her designee is directed to file a copy of this 
ordinance, including ATTACHMENT “A” hereto, with the clerk of the circuit court and the 
chief administrative officer of Orange County as required by § 171.044(3), Fla. Stat.  
 
 SECTION 6:  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 
then such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 7:  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
adoption at its second reading. 
 
FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
, 2013. 

 
ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 

 



 
Ordinance 13-33 

Page 3 of 3 
 

ATTACHMENT "A" 
  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
DESCRIPTION: (A PORTION OF PARCEL ID#02-22-27-0000-00-002) 
 
Government Lot 1 of Section 2, Township 22 South, Range 27 East, Orange County, 
Florida described as follows: 
  
Begin at the Southeast corner of Government Lot 1 of Section 2, Township 22 South, 
Range 27 East; thence run S89°33'43"W along the South line of said Government Lot 1 
as shown on the Original Government Township Plat, dated May 18, 1882 a distance of 
677.01 feet; thence run S44°50'29"W along the Southwesterly Meander Line of said 
Government Lot 1 a distance of 765.58 feet; thence run S89°36'28"W a distance of 
164.84 feet to the Ordinary High Water Line of Lake Apopka; thence run along the 
Ordinary High Water Line of Lake Apopka the following courses and distances; 
N35°28'11"E 210.94 feet; N47°42'00"E 160.66 feet; N17°17'26"E 83.54 feet; 
N51°30'54"E 199.39 feet; N53°35'05"E 92.57 feet; N17°46'27"E 191.73 feet; 
N08°01'18"E 127.10 feet; N31°29'29"E 101.86 feet; N14°38'20"E 130.78 feet; 
N01°23'53"E 72.25 feet; N53°08'44"W 123.36 feet; N20°08'48"W 112.59 feet; 
N66°10'24"W 82.86 feet; S87°03'58"W 68.84 feet; S57°44'20"W 79.21 feet; 
S43°47'50"W 58.58 feet; N75°58'17"W 87.21 feet; N31°31'07"W 64.46 feet; 
N14°23'21"W 70.93 feet; N20°45'23"W 65.37 feet; N02°07'20"E 108.22 feet; 
N07°42'01"W 149.55 feet; N27°48'53"E 124.54 feet; N62°53'31"E 92.30 feet; 
N30°16'14"E 111.31 feet; N77°38'39"E 149.75 feet; S82°39'06"E 125.27 feet; 
N65°17'41"E 277.93 feet; S63°48'46"E 140.69 feet; S30°23'36"E 67.33 feet; 
S06°00'45"E 76.53 feet; S40°08'12"E 233.15 feet; S01°22'52"W 166.28 feet; 
S51°38'54"E 61.33 feet; S16°56'11"E 48.15 feet; S67°31'42"E 220.02 feet to the East 
line of said Government Lot 1; thence run S00°58'03"W along the East line of said 
Government Lot 1 a distance of 842.32 feet to the Point of Beginning.   
 
Containing 1,432,468 square feet or 32.884 acres more or less. 



 
Ordinance 13-34 

Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE 13-34 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF 
THE WINTER GARDEN COMPREHENSIVE PLAN BY 
CHANGING THE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF REAL 
PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS 32.884 ± 
ACRES LOCATED NORTH OF THE INTERSECTION OF 
NORTH FULLERS CROSS ROAD AND EAST FULLERS 
CROSS ROAD FROM ORANGE COUNTY 
RURAL/AGRICULTURAL TO CITY CONSERVATION; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 13th of June, 1991, the City Commission of the City of Winter 
Garden adopted Ordinance 91-16 which adopted a new Comprehensive Plan for the City 
of Winter Garden, and on the 24th of June, 2010, the City Commission of the City of 
Winter Garden adopted Ordinance 10-19 readopting and amending the Comprehensive 
Plan for the City of Winter Garden; 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 32.884 
± acres located north of the intersection of North Fullers Cross Road and East Fullers 
Cross Road, and legally described in ATTACHMENT “A” (the “Property”) has petitioned 
the City to amend the Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan to change the Future Land 
Use classification from Orange County Rural/Agricultural to City Conservation; and 

  
 WHEREAS, the City of Winter Garden's Local Planning Agency and City 
Commission have conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings pursuant to 
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, regarding the adoption of this ordinance; now, therefore, 
 
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 
SECTION I.  FLUM Amendment.  The City of Winter Garden hereby amends the Future 
Land Use Map of the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan by designating the 
aforesaid Property to City Conservation as set forth in ATTACHMENT "B".  
 
SECTION II.   Effective Date.  Provided that the Property described herein is annexed 
into the City of Winter Garden pursuant to Ordinance 13-33, this Ordinance shall become 
effective 31 days after adoption, unless the Ordinance is timely challenged pursuant to § 
163.3187(5), Fla. Stat., in which case, the Ordinance shall not be effective until the state 
land planning agency or the Administrative Commission, respectively, issues a final order 
determining that the adopted Ordinance is in compliance. 
  



 
Ordinance 13-34 

Page 2 of 4 

SECTION III.  Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, then 
such portions as are not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
  
FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
, 2013. 

 
ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 
 



 
Ordinance 13-34 

Page 3 of 4 

ATTACHMENT "A" 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
DESCRIPTION: (A PORTION OF PARCEL ID#02-22-27-0000-00-002) 
 
Government Lot 1 of Section 2, Township 22 South, Range 27 East, Orange County, 
Florida described as follows: 
  
Begin at the Southeast corner of Government Lot 1 of Section 2, Township 22 South, 
Range 27 East; thence run S89°33'43"W along the South line of said Government Lot 1 
as shown on the Original Government Township Plat, dated May 18, 1882 a distance of 
677.01 feet; thence run S44°50'29"W along the Southwesterly Meander Line of said 
Government Lot 1 a distance of 765.58 feet; thence run S89°36'28"W a distance of 164.84 
feet to the Ordinary High Water Line of Lake Apopka; thence run along the Ordinary High 
Water Line of Lake Apopka the following courses and distances; N35°28'11"E 210.94 
feet; N47°42'00"E 160.66 feet; N17°17'26"E 83.54 feet; N51°30'54"E 199.39 feet; 
N53°35'05"E 92.57 feet; N17°46'27"E 191.73 feet; N08°01'18"E 127.10 feet; N31°29'29"E 
101.86 feet; N14°38'20"E 130.78 feet; N01°23'53"E 72.25 feet; N53°08'44"W 123.36 feet; 
N20°08'48"W 112.59 feet; N66°10'24"W 82.86 feet; S87°03'58"W 68.84 feet; S57°44'20"W 
79.21 feet; S43°47'50"W 58.58 feet; N75°58'17"W 87.21 feet; N31°31'07"W 64.46 feet; 
N14°23'21"W 70.93 feet; N20°45'23"W 65.37 feet; N02°07'20"E 108.22 feet; N07°42'01"W 
149.55 feet; N27°48'53"E 124.54 feet; N62°53'31"E 92.30 feet; N30°16'14"E 111.31 feet; 
N77°38'39"E 149.75 feet; S82°39'06"E 125.27 feet; N65°17'41"E 277.93 feet; S63°48'46"E 
140.69 feet; S30°23'36"E 67.33 feet; S06°00'45"E 76.53 feet; S40°08'12"E 233.15 feet; 
S01°22'52"W 166.28 feet; S51°38'54"E 61.33 feet; S16°56'11"E 48.15 feet; S67°31'42"E 
220.02 feet to the East line of said Government Lot 1; thence run S00°58'03"W along the 
East line of said Government Lot 1 a distance of 842.32 feet to the Point of Beginning.   
 
Containing 1,432,468 square feet or 32.884 acres more or less.



 
Ordinance 13-34 

Page 4 of 4 

ATTACHMENT "B" 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

PARCEL ID#02-22-27-0000-00-002 
 

 

Subject property changed from 
Orange County Rural/Agricultural to 

City Conservation Residential 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 8 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  June 28, 2013 MEETING DATE: July 1, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 315 e Fullers Cross Road (REZONING – PUD) 
 PROJECT NAME Highland Groves Subdivision 
 PARCEL ID# 11-22-27-0000-00-003 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting to rezone the 81± acres property located at 

315 E Fullers Cross Road from R-1 (Single-Family Residential District) to 
PUD(Planned Unit Development) 

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: L.F. Roper Trust 
  
CURRENT ZONING: R-1 (Single-Family Residential District) 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  
CURRENT FLU: LR (Low Density Residential) 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 Applicant proposes to rezone the subject property from R-1 to 

PUD for development of a 186 dwelling unit single family 
residential subdivision with lot sizes ranging from 75’x115’ to 
100’x115’ at a density of 2.29 dwelling units per acre. 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of the proposed rezoning subject to 

the conditions of the attached Staff Report with City Commission 
first reading of the proposed rezoning scheduled for July 11, 2013. 

  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Submit Preliminary Plat and Final Engineering Plans 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 Ordinance 13-32 
 



LOCATION MAP 

315 E Fullers Cross Road 

REZONING - PUD 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:   LAURA SMITH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE:   JUNE 28, 2013 
SUBJECT:   REZONING – HIGHLAND GROVES SUBDIVISION 
    315 East Fullers Cross Road (81+/- ACRES) 
     PARCEL ID #  11-22-27-0000-00-003 
      
      
APPLICANT:  L.F. Roper Trust 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property, located on the north side of Fullers Cross Road, east of Lake Apopka and 
west of E. Crown Point Road, is approximately 81± acres. The map below depicts the location of 
the subject property within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits. 

 



Highland Groves Subdivision 
E. Fullers Cross Road (81 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 June 28, 2013 

Page 2 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 81± acres of land. The subject property is located within the 
City of Winter Garden municipal limits, and carries the zoning designation R-1 (Single Family 
Residential). The subject property is designated LR- Low Density Residential on the Future Land 
Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan (see attached map).  
 

EXISTING USE 
The subject property is primarily used for agricultural purposes (citrus grove) and contains a 
pump house and fenced in storage area related to the acrigultural activity.  
 

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The property located on the northwest side of the subject property is in the process of being 
annexed into the City of Winter Garden and proposed to be incorporated into the proposed PUD 
in the future, however presently it is unimproved vacant land located in un-incorporated Orange 
County with A-2 Zoning. The property located on the northeast side of the subject property is 
owned by the City of Ocoee and is also unimproved vacant land located in un-incorporated 
Orange County with A-2 Zoning.  The properties located to the south are single family 
residential homes within the City of Winter Garden with R-1 Zoning.  The property to the east is 
Fullers Crossing a single family residential community in the City of Winter Garden zoned R-
1B.  The subject property is bordered on the west by Lake Apopka.  
 

PROPOSED USE 
The applicant proposes to develop the 81 ± acre site into a residential planned unit development 
containing 186 single-family dwelling units ranging in size from 75’x115’ to 100’x115’. The 
proposed lot size mixture is: 

Lot Size # of lots 
100’x115’ 13 
95’x115’ 24 
90’x115’ 9 
80’x115’ 12 
75’x115’ 128 

 
The proposed subdivision will be a non-gated community with gross density proposed at 2.29 
dwelling units per acre, the LR-Low Density Residential Future Land Use Designation allows up 
to 6 dwelling units per acre. The proposed subdivision will contain an active recreational park 
(tot-lot and ½ basketball court) and a passive recreation area (walking trails and open space) and 
14.2+/- acres of wetlands preserved for conservation. 
The proposed use will contain a minimum lot width that is the same as the minimum lot width in 
the Fullers Crossing Subdivion located on the east side of the subject property, however the 
minimum lot area will be larger than the minimum lot area in the Fullers Crossing Subdivision. 
The housing type will be similar to that built in the surrounding subdivions and other single 
family lots located along Fullers Cross Road. 
 



Highland Groves Subdivision 
E. Fullers Cross Road (81 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 June 28, 2013 

Page 3 
 
PUBLIC FACILITY ANALYSIS 
Potable Water, Reclaimed Water, and Wastewater Services 

The proposed residential development will be served by and required to connect to City of 
Winter Garden water, wastewater, and reclaimed water which are available and have 
adequate capacity to serve the proposed residential development. At such time that the 
property is developed, all necessary utility lines will be extended and connections made, 
all extension and connection costs shall be borne by the property owner.  

Stormwater 
The stormwater retention/detention facilities designed to service the proposed development 
will meet or exceed the LOS Standards stated in Policy 4-1.1.1 of the Public Facilities 
Element included in the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan. In addition, the 
stormwater facilities will be designed in accordance with St. Johns River Water 
Management District and City of Winter Garden requirements. 

Common Recreation and Open Space 
The proposed residential development is located within the Wekiva Study Area Resource 
Protection Overlay, and in accordance with the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan 
Future Land Use Element Policies 1-3.1.7 and 1-3.1.8 no less than 25% Wekiva Study Area 
Open Space shall be provided. None of the 25% Wekiva Study Area Open Space shall be 
chemically treated with pesticides to establish sensitive natural habitat. 
To the greatest extent possible, 5% of the developable area of the Property shall be set aside 
for passive, dry-land recreational use. In the event that this requirement cannot be met 
wholly or in part, then a financial contribution in accordance with Chapter 110, Article V, 
Division 2 of the City Code of Ordinances shall be made to the City Recreation Fund to 
fulfill the requirement.  

The proposed development will have 20.35 +/- acres of open space, consisting of Wekiva 
Study Area Open Space and 3.30 +/- acres set aside for active and passive recreational 
use. 

All of the common recreation and open space will be maintained by a homeowner’s 
association and available to the residents.  The developer shall establish a homeowner’s 
association in accordance with Chapter 720, Florida Statutes and having governing 
documents in compliance with Chapter 110 of the City of Winter Garden Code of 
Ordinances. 

Environment 
The subject property is located within the Wekiva Study Area Resource Protection 
Overlay. The developers are required to provide a minimum of 25% of the gross 
developable area as Wekiva Open Space as stated in Policies 1-3.1.7 and 1-3.1.8 of the 
Future Land Use Element included in the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan.  

The proposed development will provide for protection of the 14.20 wetland area located 
along the northeast portion of the property and will identify the area as conservation with 
notification signage. 



Highland Groves Subdivision 
E. Fullers Cross Road (81 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 June 28, 2013 

Page 4 
 

Lake Apopka shoreline protection and additional wetland protection will be provided in 
the form of a 25 foot upland buffer from the Normal High Water Line and wetland 
boundary. 

Transportation 
The City has coordinated with Orange County to take over the intersection of Fullers 
Cross Road and East Crown Point Road and will be conducting a warrant study for a 
traffic light to be installed at that intersection to alleviate the existing traffic congestion 
and minimize the impact of the additional trips generated by the proposed development. 
The applicant has agreed to pre-pay road impact fees for the proposed development to 
fund the signalization of the intersection. 

The proposed development will be limited to a single access point on Fullers Cross Road 
and will connect to the existing cross-access point located within the Fullers Corssing 
Subdivision to the east of the subject property. 

Other Services 
The City will provide garbage collection, police protection, and all other services 
regularly provided to City of Winter Garden residents including building permits. The 
property will be served by both Orange County Fire and Rescue and the City of Winter 
Garden Fire Department under the First Response System. 

 

SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends approval of the proposed Ordinance, rezoning the subject property form 
City R-1 to City PUD is consistent with the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive. 
The proposed PUD is consistent with surrounding development in the area and is compatible 
with the uses in the surrounding area. The proposed development of the subject property is 
consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and land 
development regulations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Highland Groves Subdivision 
E. Fullers Cross Road (81 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 June 28, 2013 

Page 5 
 
MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
HIGHLAND GROVES SUBDIVISION 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Highland Groves Subdivision 
E. Fullers Cross Road (81 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 June 28, 2013 

Page 6 
 

ZONING MAP 
HIGHLAND GROVES SUBDIVISION 

 



Highland Groves Subdivision 
E. Fullers Cross Road (81 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 June 28, 2013 

Page 7 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
HIGHLAND GROVES SUBDIVISION 

 
END OF STAFF REPORT  



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 1 of 30 

ORDINANCE 13-32 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA, REZONING APPROXIMATELY 81 ± ACRES OF 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED 
NORTH OF EAST FULLERS CROSS ROAD, EAST OF 
LAKE APOPKA AND WEST OF EAST CROWN POINT 
ROAD AT 315 EAST FULLERS CROSS ROAD, FROM 
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (R-1) TO 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD); PROVIDING FOR 
CERTAIN PUD REQUIREMENTS AND DESCRIBING THE 
DEVELOPMENT AS THE HIGHLAND GROVES PUD; 
PROVIDING FOR NON-SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the Owner(s) of real property generally described as approximately 
81 ± acres of certain real property generally located north of East Fullers Cross Road on 
east of Lake Apopka and west of East Crown Point Road at 315 East Fullers Cross Road 
in Winter Garden, Florida, being more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Property”), desire to rezone their 
property from City R-1 to City PUD, and 
 
 WHEREAS, further, the City Commission finds that based on competent, 
substantial evidence in the record, the rezoning approved by this Ordinance meets all 
applicable criteria for rezoning; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the 
City Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the adoption 
of this Ordinance and the proposed development of the Property is consistent with the 
City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Winter Garden Code of 
Ordinances; therefore, 
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Rezoning.  The above “Whereas” clauses constitute findings by the 
City Commission.  After due notice and public hearing, the zoning classification of the 
Property, as described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, is hereby rezoned from Single-
Family Residential District (R-1) to Planned Unit Development (PUD) in the City of 
Winter Garden, Florida subject to the following conditions, provisions and restrictions: 
 

a. Conceptual Plan- All development on the Property must substantially 
conform to the requirements identified in the Highland Groves Subdivision 
PUD Development Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B.” Should any conflict 
be found between this Ordinance and the Highland Groves Subdivision 
PUD Development Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, then the standards 
and conditions established by this Ordinance shall control. 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 2 of 30 

 
b. Zoning- Unless specifically noted elsewhere in Exhibit “B” attached hereto, 

all residential development on the Property must comply with the general 
zoning requirements of the R-1 Single Family Residential District for any 
structures, including but not limited to swimming pools, screen rooms 
accessory structures and buildings that are developed on the Property. 

 
c. Design Criteria/Architectural Standards-  
 

1. Lot Size- Minimum lot width shall be 75 feet. 
 

2. Building Height- Maximum building height shall be 35 feet, not to 
exceed 2 stories. 

 
3. Minimum Living Area- Minimum living area for each residential unit 

shall be 1,500 square feet. 
 

4. Signage- All signage shall be reviewed and permitted by the City of 
Winter Garden. All proposed signage, with the exception of street 
signs, traffic signs and signs identifying the conservation area shall 
be submitted for review and approval as part of the subdivision 
construction plans for the Property. 

 
5. Setbacks and Required Yards-  

 
a. Front yard: 25 feet 
b. Rear yard: 20 feet, except lakefront lots which shall require 

30 feet. 
c. Side yard: 7.5 feet 
d. Corner/Street Side yard: 15 feet 
e. Pool (side and rear) setback: 5 feet 

6. Residential Design Criteria- All development on the Property must 
maintain the same general design criteria and architectural 
characteristics as the Building Elevations and typical interior floor 
plans attached hereto as Exhibit “C”.  

7. Swimming pools must meet all requirements of the City Code of 
Ordinances. Encroachments into drainage and/or utility easements 
will not be permitted. Applications for swimming pools will be 
reviewed on an individual basis.   

8. Common Recreation and Open Space- The Property is located 
within the Resource Protection Overlay, and in compliance with the 
City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 
Element Policies 1-3.1.7 and 1-3.1.8 no less than 25% Wekiva Study 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 3 of 30 

Area Open Space shall be provided. 
 
 

None of the 25% Wekiva Study Area Open Space shall be 
chemically treated with pesticides to establish sensitive natural 
habitat. 
 
To the greatest extent possible, 5% of the developable area of the 
Property shall be set aside for passive, dry-land recreational use. In 
the event that this requirement cannot be met wholly or in part, then 
a financial contribution in accordance with Chapter 110, Article V, 
Division 2 of the City Code of Ordinances shall be made to the City 
Recreation Fund to fulfill the requirement.  

 
d. Staff Conditions- All development on the Property must comply with the 

following conditions: 
1. Provide approvals from FFWCC prior to construction that gopher 

tortoise activity on the Property has been addressed. 
2. Provide muck delineation overlay on the final construction plans to 

ensure that areas containing organic soils near the lake shoreline will 
not fall on building lots without the muck being removed. 

3. The Property shall be platted in accordance with Chapter 110, City 
Code.  A homeowners’ association (“HOA”) shall be created to 
maintain the subdivision common property and community 
subdivision infrastructure prior to recording the first plat.  A 
declaration binding on the Property shall be executed and recorded 
containing the provisions required by Chapter 110, City Code. 

4. Walls and landscaping shall be located within a landscape and wall 
tract, to be maintained by the HOA; wall and landscape tract shall be 
outside of the existing right-of-way. 

5. If gated, streets shall be private and owned and maintained by the 
HOA.  While portions of the right-of-way may be dedicated to the 
City, maintenance of special pavements, landscaping, hardscaping, 
etc. shall be performed by the HOA under a right-of-way 
maintenance agreement in a form acceptable to the City. 

6. All proposed easements shall be 30’ minimum width for sanitary, 
water and stormwater; improvements shall be centered within the 
easement.  Common areas not abutting right-of-way shall include a 
tract (not easement) for access and maintenance. 

7. At the developer’s expense, utilities shall be installed and extended 
in accordance with Section 78-2, City Code.  Minimum 8” potable 
water (internal), 8” reuse water, and minimum 6” sanitary force main 
are required.  Utilities shall be extended the full property frontage 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 4 of 30 

along public rights-of-way per Code; extending the 16” water main on 
Fullers Cross Road shall be addressed in the Developer’s 
Agreement; Water and Reuse lines shall be looped and connected 
into the existing stub outs in Fullers Crossing.  Reuse main shall 
connect at both Fullers Crossing (internal) and be extended on 
Fullers Cross Road to connect to the existing stub out approximately 
640 feet east of the entrance to loop the system. Force main shall be 
6”; all internal water mains shall be 8” minimum.  

8. Minimum 5 foot wide utility and drainage easements shall be 
provided on each side lot line; 10’ drainage and utility easements 
required adjacent to right-of-way. 

9. Street lighting shall be pursuant to City Code, including frontage on 
Fullers Cross Road, meeting dark skies requirements (Code Section 
118-1536(k)).  Submit street lighting plan from Progress Energy prior 
to preconstruction meeting. 

10. All irrigation on the site shall be designed to be supplied by 
reclaimed water (minimum 8” internal main size).  

11. Permits from SJRWMD and FDEP (water, wastewater and NPDES) 
are required prior to issuance of site or building permits.  

12. Sidewalks internal to the development shall be constructed adjacent 
to all lands not containing building lots prior to final acceptance.  This 
shall include all retention, conservation, lift station, or recreation 
tracts, abutting roadways, pedestrian walkways, etc.  Sidewalks 
external to the development shall be constructed upon final 
completion. 

13. Boat docks, piers, and any other shoreline improvements are 
subject to the approval and permitting processes of the City of 
Winter Garden and the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection. All lakefront lots are not guaranteed boat docks, piers, 
or any other shoreline improvements, each lakefront lot will be 
reviewed individually based on lot configuration and other physical 
characteristics. 

14. The Owner is responsible for meeting all provisions of ADA and 
Florida Accessibility Code. 

15. All work shall conform to City of Winter Garden standards and 
specifications. 

16. The City of Winter Garden will inspect private site improvements only 
to the extent that they connect to City owned/maintained systems 
(roadways, drainage, utilities, etc.).  It is the responsibility of the 
Owner and Design Engineer to ensure that privately owned and 
maintained systems are constructed to the intended specifications.  
The City is not responsible for the operation and maintenance of 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 5 of 30 

privately owned systems, to include, but not be limited to, roadways, 
parking lots, drainage, stormwater ponds or on-site utilities. 

17. The Owner’s/Developer’s Contractor is responsible for the 
notification, location and protection of all utilities that may exist within 
the project limits. 

18. No fill or runoff will be allowed to discharge onto adjacent properties; 
existing drainage patterns shall not be altered.  The applicant should 
note that if approval is granted, the City of Winter Garden is not 
granting rights or easements for drainage from, or onto, property 
owned by others.  Obtaining permission, easements or other 
approvals that may be required to drain onto private property is the 
Owner/Developer's responsibility.  Should the flow of stormwater 
runoff from, or onto adjacent properties be unreasonable or cause 
problems, the City will not be responsible and any corrective 
measures required will be the responsibility of the Owner.  Site 
construction shall adhere to the City of Winter Garden erosion and 
sediment control requirements as contained in Chapter 106 - 
Stormwater.  If approval is granted by the City of Winter Garden, it 
does not waive any permits that may be required by federal, state, 
regional, county, municipal or other agencies that may have 
jurisdiction. 

19. After final plan approval, a preconstruction meeting will be required 
prior to any commencement of construction. The applicant shall 
provide an erosion control and street lighting plan at the 
preconstruction meeting and shall pay all engineering review and 
inspection fees prior to construction.  Inspection fees in the amount 
of 2.25% of the cost of all site improvements shall be paid prior to 
issuance of site or building permits. 

 SECTION 2: General Requirements. 
 

a. Developer’s Agreement- A Developer’s Agreement shall be drafted, 
approval obtained and recorded prior to approval of Preliminary Plat of the 
Property and prior to the issuance of any site or building permits. The 
Developer’s Agreement shall include, but is not limited to the following: 
project phasing, utilities upsizing, right-of-way conveyances and adherence 
to all City Codes and Standards. 
 

b. Stand Alone Clause- Each phase of development of the Property must 
operate as an individual unit in that each particular phase will be able to 
stand-alone in the event that no other phase is developed. 

 
c. Land Development Approvals and Permits- This Ordinance does not 

require the City to issue any permit or approval for development, 
construction, preliminary plat, final plat, building permit, or other matter by 
the City relating to the Property or the project or any portion thereof. These 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 6 of 30 

and any other required City development approvals and permits shall be 
processed and issued by the City in accordance with procedures set forth in 
the City’s Code of Ordinances and subject to this Ordinance.  

 
d. Amendments- Minor amendments to this Ordinance will be achieved by 

Resolution of the City Commission of the City of Winter Garden. Major 
amendments to this Ordinance will require approval of the City Commission 
of the City of Winter Garden by Ordinance. 

 
e. Expiration- Expiration of this PUD shall be governed in accordance with 

Section 118-830, City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances. Time 
extensions may be granted in accordance with Section 118-829, City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances. 

 
 SECTION 3: Zoning Map.  The City Planner is hereby authorized and directed to 
amend the Official Winter Garden Zoning Map in accordance with the provisions of this 
ordinance. 
 
 SECTION 4: Non-Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held 
invalid, then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void. 
 
 SECTION 5: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
adoption at its second reading. 
  
 
FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
, 2013. 

 
ADOPTED this  day of,  , 2013,  by the City Commission 
of the City of Winter Garden, Florida. 

 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

Exhibit “A” 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 7 of 30 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
That part of Government Lots 1 and 2 of Section 11, Township 22 South, Range 27 
East, Orange County, Florida described as: 
 
Begin at a point 3 chains South of the NE corner of said Section 11, thence West 345 
feet, thence S 68°40' W 558 feet, thence S 58° W 534.8 feet, thence S 9°21' W 565.23 
feet, thence S 07 1/2° E to a point 1353.7 feet West of the Section line and the center 
line of the road extended West, thence East 1353.7 feet, thence North along the 
section line 1423 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
AND 
 
That part lying West of Government Lots 1 and 2 of Section 11, Township 22 South, 
Range 27 East, Orange County, Florida, described as: 
Begin at a point 1007 feet North and 1353.7 feet West of the SE corner of Government 
Lot 2, thence along original high water line the following 3 calls: run N 7° W 377 feet, 
thence N 09°21' E 565.23 feet along said high water line, thence N 58° E 131 feet along 
high water line, thence N 7°W 77 feet, thence S 89° W 120 feet more or less to the 
waters of Lake Apopka, thence Southwesterly along waters of Lake Apopka 1085 feet 
more or less to point due West of the point of beginning, thence East to the point of 
beginning. Less the following: Begin at the NE corner of Lot 1, Block A, Magnolia 
Wood, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book V, Page 91, Public 
Records of Orange County, Florida, thence Northeasterly along right-of-way 40.12 feet, 
thence West 390 feet more or less to Lake Apopka, said point being Point A, Begin 
again at the Point of Beginning, thence West along the North lot line of said Lot 1, 364 
feet more or less to Lake Apopka, thence Northerly along Lake Apopka 30 feet more or 
less to aforesaid Point A, in Section 11, Township 22 South, Range 27 East, Orange 
County, Florida. 
 
AND 
 
Begin at the Northwest corner of Section 12, Township 22 South, Range 27 East, 
Orange County, Florida and run East along Section line 14.03 chains, thence South 
parallel to the West Section line 24.58 chains to the North line of a street, thence West 
14.03 chains to the West line of the Section, thence North along the West line 24.57 
chains to the Point of Beginning. Less road right-of-way on South as contained in Deed 
Book 390, Page 388, Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
 
AND 
 
North 5.9 acres of Government Lot 1 in Section 11, Township 22 South, Range 22 
East. 

 
Exhibit “B” 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 8 of 30 

COVER PAGE 
 

 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

PRELIMINARY PLAN 
 

Highland Groves  
 

REVISED MAY 2013 
 
 

(13 PAGES - ATTACHED) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 9 of 30 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 10 of 30 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 11 of 30 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 12 of 30 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 13 of 30 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 14 of 30 

 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 15 of 30 

 
 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 16 of 30 

 
 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 17 of 30 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 18 of 30 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 19 of 30 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 20 of 30 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 21 of 30 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 22 of 30 

 
 

Exhibit “C” 
 

COVER PAGE 
 

 
BUILDING ELEVATIONS AND 

TYPICAL FLOOR PLANS 
 

Highland Groves  
 
 
 

(8 PAGES - ATTACHED) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 23 of 30 

 

 
 
 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 24 of 30 

 

 
 
 
 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 25 of 30 

 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 26 of 30 

 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 27 of 30 

 

 
 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 28 of 30 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 29 of 30 

 



 
Ordinance 13-32 

Page 30 of 30 

 

 
 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 9 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  June 28, 2013 MEETING DATE: July 1, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 16303 Marsh Road (REZONING – UVPUD) 
 PROJECT NAME Crooked Lake Preserve 
 PARCEL ID# 05-23-27-0000-00-005 & 05-23-27-0000-00-008 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting to rezone the 78.29± acre property located at 

16303 Marsh Road from NZ (No Zoning) to UVPUD (Urban Village 
Planned Unit Development) 

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Crooked Lake Holdings, LLC 
  
CURRENT ZONING: NZ (No Zoning) 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: UVPUD (Urban Village Planned Unit Development) 
  
CURRENT FLU: VIL (Urban Village) 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 Applicant proposes to rezone the subject property from NZ to 

UVPUD for development of a 140 dwelling unit single family 
residential development with lot sizes ranging from 60-90 feet wide 
at a density of 2.38 dwelling units per acre. 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of the proposed rezoning subject to 

the conditions of the attached Staff Report with City Commission 
first reading of the proposed rezoning scheduled for July 11, 2013. 

  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Submit Preliminary Plat and Final Engineering Plans 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 Ordinance 13-41 
 



LOCATION MAP 

16303 Marsh Road 

REZONING - UVPUD 

 

 

 

  



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO: PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY: LAURA SMITH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE: JUNE 28, 2013 
SUBJECT: REZONING (UVPUD) 
  16303 Marsh Road (105.68+/- ACRES) 

Parcel ID# 05-23-27-0000-00-005 & 05-23-27-0000-00-008 
   
APPLICANT: Crooked Lake Holdings, LLC 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Land Development Regulations, Comprehensive Plan, and Future Land Use Map 
The subject property, located on the north and south side of Marsh Road east of Williams Road 
and west of Avalon Road at 16303 Marsh Road, is approximately 78.29± acres. The map below 
depicts the location of the subject property within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits: 

 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
June 28, 2013 

Page 2 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone 78.29± acres of land. The subject property is located within 
the City of Winter Garden municipal limits, and carries the zoning designation NZ, which means 
that the property has not yet been zoned since it was annexed into the City of Winter Garden in 
September 2007. The subject property is designated Urban Village on the Future Land Use Map 
of the Comprehensive Plan.  
 

EXISTING USE 
The subject property is vacant unimproved land presently used for agriculture (timberland) and 
does not contain any structures. 
 

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The subject property is bordered on the north side by John’s Lake. The property located to the 
east of the subject property is the Hickory Hammock residential subdivision currently under site 
construction which is zoned PUD in the City of Winter Garden. The property located to the west 
of the subject property on the north side of Marsh Road is the Waterside at John’s Lake 
residential subdivision currently under site construction which is zoned UVPUD in the City of 
Winter Garden. The property located to the south and west of the subject property on the south 
side of Marsh Road is vacant unimproved land presently used for agriculture (timberland & 
citrus grove), this property was recently annexed into the City and is presently the subject of a 
Future Land Use Map Amendment to designate the property as Urban Village on the City’s 
Future Land Use Map however until that amendment is adopted the property retains its Orange 
County Future Land Use Designation of Village.  
The subject property and surrounding properties to the west are all located within the JPA 
expansion area as adopted by the Sixth Amendment to the Restated Interlocal Agreement for 
Joint Planning Area between Orange County and the City of Winter Garden. Additionally, the 
subject property as well as many of the surrounding properties (a total of 596 acres) were 
annexed into the City of Winter Garden by Ordinance 07-34. At the time the properties were 
annexed into the City they were not assigned zoning or future land use designation in the City of 
Winter Garden. Subsequently, as part of the EAR based amendments to the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan which were adopted in 2010, the subject property and many of the 
surrounding properties (a total of 642.73 acres) were assigned a future land use designation of 
Urban Village on the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  
 

PROPOSED USE 
The applicant proposes to develop the 78.29 ± acre site into an urban village planned unit 
development (UVPUD) of 140 single family dwelling units, with 3 recreational park areas, and 
open space areas. 
APPROVAL CRITERIA 
In accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Regulations, a 
proposed planned unit development and its associated preliminary development plan may be 
approved only after competent, substantial evidence has been presented which allows the 
following determinations to be made: (staff conclusions/findings are underlined) 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
June 28, 2013 

Page 3 
 

(1) The proposed PUD is consistent with the land development regulations, comprehensive plan 
and the future land use map; 

The proposed UVPUD is consistent with the land development regulations, 
comprehensive plan, and the future land use map. See other portions of this report 
concerning consistency with the land development regulations. 

(2) The proposed PUD will not substantially devalue or prevent reasonable use and enjoyment of 
the adjacent properties; 

The proposed UVPUD project will not deprive or prevent adjacent property owners of 
any rights or abilities to enjoy or continue existing uses of their property or to develop 
their property in accordance with the city’s land development regulations and 
comprehensive plan goals, objectives, and policies. Further, in accordance with land 
development regulations and the comprehensive plan, the proposed UVPUD will provide 
for adequate buffering against adjoining properties and rights-of-way in the form of either 
landscaping to create a visual screen and/or perimeter walls/fencing. 

(3) Adequate public infrastructure facilities and water and sewer service to support the 
development of the proposed PUD are available or an agreement or binding conditions have 
been established that will provide these facilities, improvements and services in a reasonable 
time frame;  

The proposed UVPUD site has several dirt and/or gravel driveway points of 
transportation access at this time due to the predominantly agricultural use of the 
property. However, at such time as the property is developed as proposed by the applicant 
then additional transportation access would be provided in the form of a round-a-bout at 
the main entrance on Marsh Road, two (2) secondary access points will be provided to 
ensure cross access connections to the adjoining properties located to the west of the 
proposed development, and a cross connection on the east side of the property will be 
provided to connect the propose development with the Hickory Hammock PUD. All 
roadway improvements will be constructed at the owner’s expense and in compliance 
with city concurrency standards for transportation, and be supported by a traffic 
study/analysis of the impact the proposed development will have on the roadway 
network. Traffic studies/analyses submitted with any proposed development are reviewed 
for accuracy and consistency with the goals, objectives, and policies of the City’s 
comprehensive plan in addition to the City’s vision for future growth and expansion.  
 
The property is not currently a water or sewer customer of the City of Winter Garden; 
however water, sewer, and reclaimed utilities will be required for any new development 
of the property. All necessary utility lines (water, sewer, and reclaimed water) are 
presently being extended along the frontage of the subject property in conjunction with 
development of the Waterside at John’s Lake UVPUD and Waterside at John’s Lake 
Phase 2 UVPUD, and connections will be made to serve the development of the subject 
property, any and all extension and connection costs shall be borne by the property 
owner. At the present time there is capacity available within the City’s water, wastewater 
and reclaimed water systems to support the proposed development. 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
June 28, 2013 

Page 4 
 

Additionally, proposed UVPUD has provided for a 3.26 acre retention pond to be 
constructed on their property which will be dedicated to the City of Winter Garden to 
assist with stormwater management for the additional stormwater that will be generated 
from the intersection improvements at the intersection of Avalon Road and Marsh Road.   
 
Prior to any approvals for preliminary plat or construction plans, a Developer’s 
Agreement shall be drafted, approval obtained and recordation of the agreement. The 
Developer’s Agreement shall address matters to include, but not limited to, developer’s 
reimbursement for utility line extensions along Marsh Road, project phasing, the granting 
of a permanent drainage easement over, under and through Tract J (3.26 +/- acres) to the 
City of Winter Garden for the construction, operation and maintenance of a stormwater 
management system benefiting the Project and Marsh Road and C.R. 545 right-of-way 
improvements, round-a-bout and other right-of-way improvements and right-of-way 
conveyances, other public infrastructure improvements, lift station, internal utility lines, 
community subdivision infrastructure improvements requirements of Chapter 110, City 
Code, and impact fees. Owner shall cause mortgage lien holders to execute a joinder, 
consent and subordination of their lien interests to the Developer’s Agreement for 
recording in the public records concurrently with the Developer’s Agreement.   

(4) The proposed PUD will not allow a type or intensity of development that is premature or 
presently out of character in relationship to the surrounding area;  

The proposed UVPUD project is consistent with the comprehensive plan’s goals, 
objectives and policies for the Urban Village future land use designation and the UVPUD 
zoning criteria and land development regulations. The proposed UVPUD project features 
a gross density of 2.02 dwelling units per acre which is substantially lower than the 
maximum density of 4 dwelling units per acre permitted within the Urban Village future 
land use designation and in accordance with the Sixth Amendment to the Restated 
Interlocal Agreement for Joint Planning Area between Orange County and the City of 
Winter Garden. Additionally, the gross density of 2.02 dwelling units per acre for the 
proposed UVPUD project is substantially lower than the 10 dwelling units per acre that 
the previous Horizons West designation would allow. 

The proposed UVPUD is not premature or presently out of character in relationship to the 
surrounding area. Using the Orange County Public Schools Concurrency Service Areas 
as an identification of the surrounding area, there are many residential and commercial 
developments within the surrounding area which have similar or greater density and/or 
intensity than the proposed UVPUD project. Some of the approved and/or constructed 
developments within the surrounding area which extends east beyond SR 429 include 
Waterside at John’s Lake, Waterside at John’s Lake Phase 2, Hickory Hammock, Avalon 
Reserve, Stoneybrook West, Carriage Pointe, Stone Creek, Belle Meade, Avamar 
Crossings, Alexander Ridge, and Carriage Ponte Reserve.  

Recently the property located immediately to the west of the subject property was 
approved for rezoning to UVPUD, the project known as Waterside at John’s Lake is 
permitted for up to 172 single family dwelling units and is approximately 75.94+/- acres. 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
June 28, 2013 

Page 5 
 

Additionally, numerous properties located to the west of the subject property, totaling 
over 60 acres are seeking annexation into the City of Winter Garden municipal limits. 

(5) The rezoning will not interfere with an adjacent property owner's reasonable expectation of 
use or enjoyment; and 

Adjoining property owners to the south and west of the subject property either 
participated in the annexation and future land use designation of Urban Village for their 
properties in 2007 or have since been annexed into the City of Winter Garden and are in 
process to be designated Urban Village on the future land use map of the City’s 
comprehensive plan. Adjoining property owners to the east of the subject property on the 
north side of Marsh Road were rezoned to PUD and approved for residential 
development at a density of 2.10 dwelling units per acre in 2006. The adjoining property 
owner to the east of the subject property on the south side of Marsh Road is the City of 
Winter Garden and the side will be used for stormwater management. In accordance with 
the City’s comprehensive plan, the only zoning permitted within the Urban Village future 
land use designation is Urban Village Planned Unit Development or Institutional. 
Further, in accordance with land development regulations and the comprehensive plan, 
the proposed UVPUD will provide for adequate buffering against adjoining properties 
and rights-of-way in the form of either landscaping to create a visual screen and/or 
perimeter walls/fencing. 

(6) There is availability and adequacy of primary streets and thoroughfares to support traffic to 
be generated within the proposed PUD and the surrounding area, or an agreement or binding 
conditions have been established that will provide such transportation facilities to support 
said traffic in a reasonable time frame. 

At such time as the property is developed as proposed by the applicant then additional 
transportation access would be provided in the form of a round-a-bout at the main 
entrance on Marsh Road, two (2) secondary access points will be provided to ensure 
cross access connections to the adjoining properties located to the west of the proposed 
development, and a cross connection on the east side of the property will be provided to 
connect the propose development with the Hickory Hammock PUD. The main entrance 
on Marsh Road will be constructed with the initial development of the subject property; 
cross access points will be constructed with the respective phase within which they are 
located. All roadway improvements will be constructed at the owner’s expense and in 
compliance with city concurrency standards for transportation, and be supported by a 
traffic study/analysis of the impact the proposed development will have on the roadway 
network. Traffic studies/analyses submitted with any proposed development are reviewed 
for accuracy and consistency with the goals, objectives, and policies of the City’s 
comprehensive plan in addition to the City’s vision for future growth and expansion. The 
traffic analysis provided with the proposed UVPUD project indicates that the project will 
not lower the adopted level of service standard on Marsh Road. 

Prior to any approvals for preliminary plat or construction plans, a Developer’s 
Agreement shall be drafted, approval obtained and recordation of the agreement. The 
Developer’s Agreement shall address matters to include, but not limited to, developer’s 
reimbursement for utility line extensions along Marsh Road, project phasing, the granting 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
June 28, 2013 

Page 6 
 

of a permanent drainage easement over, under and through Tract J (3.26 +/- acres) to the 
City of Winter Garden for the construction, operation and maintenance of a stormwater 
management system benefiting the Project and Marsh Road and C.R. 545 right-of-way 
improvements, round-a-bout and other right-of-way improvements and right-of-way 
conveyances, other public infrastructure improvements, lift station, internal utility lines, 
community subdivision infrastructure improvements requirements of Chapter 110, City 
Code, and impact fees. Owner shall cause mortgage lien holders to execute a joinder, 
consent and subordination of their lien interests to the Developer’s Agreement for 
recording in the public records concurrently with the Developer’s Agreement. 

(7) The degree of departure or conformity of the proposed PUD with surrounding areas in terms 
of character and density. 

The proposed UVPUD project is consistent with the comprehensive plan’s goals, 
objectives and policies for the Urban Village future land use designation and the UVPUD 
zoning criteria and land development regulations. The proposed UVPUD project features 
a gross density of 2.02 dwelling units per acre which is substantially lower than the 
maximum density of 4 dwelling units per acre permitted within the Urban Village future 
land use designation and in accordance with the Sixth Amendment to the Restated 
Interlocal Agreement for Joint Planning Area between Orange County and the City of 
Winter Garden. 

The proposed UVPUD is not premature or presently out of character in relationship to the 
surrounding area. There are many residential and commercial developments within the 
surrounding area which have similar or greater density and/or intensity than the proposed 
UVPUD project. Some of the approved and/or constructed developments within the 
surrounding area which extends east beyond SR 429 include Waterside at John’s Lake, 
Waterside at John’s Lake Phase 2, Hickory Hammock, Avalon Reserve, Stoneybrook 
West, Carriage Pointe, Stone Creek, Belle Meade, Avamar Crossings, Alexander Ridge, 
and Carriage Ponte Reserve.  

Recently the property located immediately to the west of the subject property was 
approved for rezoning to UVPUD, the project known as Waterside at John’s Lake is 
permitted for up to 172 single family dwelling units and is approximately 75.94+/- acres. 
Additionally, numerous properties located to the west of the subject property, totaling 
over 60 acres are seeking annexation into the City of Winter Garden municipal limits. 

(8) Compatibility of uses and improvements within the PUD and the relationship with 
surrounding existing or proposed developments. 

The proposed UVPUD project integrates several elements that provide for cohesion 
between existing natural features/resources and the existing and proposed uses 
surrounding the property. The project includes construction of a 10 foot wide multi-
purpose trail extending the length of the property frontage on Marsh Road to enhance 
pedestrian circulation as identified in the Sixth Amendment to the Restated Interlocal 
Agreement for Joint Planning Area between Orange County and the City of Winter 
Garden. The project includes three (3) open space/recreational parks two (2) of which 
will be located on the portion of the property located on the north side of Marsh road and 
one (1) of which will be located on the portion of the property located on the south side 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
June 28, 2013 

Page 7 
 

of Marsh Road. Cross access connection points are being provided to the approved 
Waterside at John’s Lake UVPUD located to the west of the property, the approved 
Hickory Hammock PUD located to the east of the subject property and the vacant 
property located to the south and west of the subject property on the south side of Marsh 
Road which was recently annexed into the City of Winter Garden to ensure multiple 
points of entry/exit to the subject property and provide property owners to the east, south 
and west of the subject property vehicular and pedestrian access through the subject 
property. 

(9) Prevention of erosion and degrading or enhancement of the surrounding areas. 

The proposed UVPUD project, which borders John’s Lake on the north side, will provide 
a 25 foot wetland buffer from the Normal High Water Line of John’s Lake. Proposed 
UVPUD project also provides for a 100 foot buffer from the confining layer of the karst 
feature located north of Marsh Road on the west side of the subject property, meets the 
environmental standards of the Wekiva Study Area, and complies with the City’s lake 
protection Ordinance provisions. No community docks or boat ramps are proposed to be 
located on Johns’ Lake. 

(10) Provision for recreation facilities, surface drainage, flood control and soil conservation as 
shown in the preliminary development plan. 

Recreational facilities are identified within the proposed UVPUD project to include a 10 
foot wide multi-purpose trail along Marsh Road and three (3) open space/recreational 
parks two (2) of which will be located on the portion of the property located on the north 
side of Marsh road and one (1) of which will be located on the portion of the property 
located on the south side of Marsh Road. The recreational facilities proposed comply 
with the Wekiva Study Area Resource Protection Overlay requirements for passive 
recreation. Requirements for recreation areas stipulated by the City of Winter Garden 
subdivision standards are being met. 

Stormwater management for the proposed UVPUD project will be provided in on-site 
master stormwater management areas to satisfy the City of Winter Garden, St. John’s 
Water Management District and strict requirements of the Wekiva Study Area criteria. 
Additionally, proposed UVPUD has provided for a 3.26 acre retention pond to be 
constructed on their property which will be dedicated to the City of Winter Garden to 
assist with stormwater management for the additional stormwater that will be generated 
from the intersection improvements at the intersection of Avalon Road and Marsh Road.   
 

(11) The nature, intent and compatibility of any common open space, including the proposed 
method for the maintenance and conservation of the common open space. 

The property on which the UVPUD project is proposed to be developed is located within 
the Wekiva Study Area Resource Protection Overlay as defined by the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, and therefore must comply with the Wekiva Study Area Open 
Space requirements as defined by the City’s Comprehensive Plan Policies 1-3.1.7 & 1-
3.1.8, which requires that a minimum of 25% of the developable area be Wekiva Study 
Area Open Space. Wekiva Study Area (WSA) Open Space is land area that remains 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
June 28, 2013 

Page 8 
 

undisturbed or minimally disturbed such as trails and boardwalks, as part of a natural 
resource preserve or passive recreation area and includes land preserved for Conservation 
purposes.  WSA Open Space may include dry retention, passive recreation, school 
playgrounds and buffers.  Up to 50% of the WSA Open Space requirement may be met 
with dry stormwater retention areas.  None of the 25% WSA Open Space may be 
chemically treated with pesticides or fertilizers. WSA Open Space shall not include 
setback areas, private yards, street right of way, parking lots, impervious surfaces or 
active recreation areas. The proposed UVPUD project complies with the Wekiva Study 
Area Open Space requirements; the gross developable area of the property is 
approximately 68.61 acres, the required Wekiva Study Area Open Space which will be 
provided on the property is 17.86 acres. All open space and recreational facilities will be 
owned and maintained by mandatory Home Owner’s Association.   

(12) The feasibility and compatibility of the specified stage(s) or phase(s) contained in the 
preliminary development plan to exist as an independent development. 

The proposed UVPUD project is not proposed to be developed in phases, however should 
the development be separated into phases, then each phase of development of the 
proposed UVPUD project  must operate as an individual unit in that each particular phase 
will be able to stand-alone in the event that no other phase is developed.   

(13) The availability of existing or planned reclaimed water service to support the proposed PUD. 

Reclaimed water capacity is available to serve the property on which the UVPUD is 
proposed to be developed from the City’s existing reclaimed water lines which are 
presently being extended from the intersection of Avalon Road and Marsh Road in 
conjunction with the current construction and development activity of the Waterside at 
John’s Lake UVPUD, Waterside at John’s Lake Phase 2 UVPUD and Hickory Hammock 
PUD projects. At such time that the property is developed, all necessary utility lines 
(water, sewer, and reclaimed water) will be available and connections will be made to 
serve the development of the property, all extension and connection costs shall be borne 
by the property owner. 

(14) The benefits within the proposed PUD development and to the general public to justify the 
requested departure from standard land use requirements inherent in a PUD classification. 

The proposed UVPUD includes 60 foot to 90 foot wide lot sizes. Lots will be designed to 
incorporate a variety of garage orientations including at least 40% of garages that are 
recessed 5 feet behind the primary façade of the structure or are side entry garages. Front 
porches will be incorporated into the designs of at least 50% of the residential units. 

The proposed UVPUD project incorporates the following features which are of benefit to 
the general public and support the waivers and reductions requested above: construction 
of 10 foot wide multi-purpose trail along the site frontage on Marsh Road which provides 
for pedestrian circulation and access on Marsh Road, roadway improvements in the form 
of a round-a-bout at the main entrance to the proposed project which will slow and calm 
traffic on Marsh Road which has been a primary concern of the city and property owners 
adjacent to the subject property, and preservation of the John’s Lake shoreline areas to 
enhance natural resources/features. The project as proposed provides open space in 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
June 28, 2013 

Page 9 
 

excess of the standard subdivision requirements provides protection and substantial 
buffering from the neighboring karst feature as well as preservation and conservation of 
the John’s Lake shorelines. Additionally, the project as proposed has provided for a 3.26 
acre retention pond to be constructed on their property which will be dedicated to the 
City of Winner Garden to assist with stormwater management for the additional 
stormwater that will be generated from the intersection improvements at the intersection 
of Avalon Road and Marsh Road.   

(15) The conformity and compatibility of the proposed common open space, residential and/or 
nonresidential uses within the proposed PUD. 

Nonresidential uses are not proposed within the UVPUD proposal for the project. The 
UVPUD proposal includes 140 single family residential dwelling units with 17.86 acres 
of open space area including 2.95 acres of recreation area. The recreation and open space 
areas are complementary and supportive to the residential component of the proposed 
UVPUD project. The project is a pedestrian friendly design and provides internal access 
to the future commercial core to be located near the intersection of Williams Road and 
Marsh Road. 

(16) Architectural characteristics of proposed residential and/or nonresidential development. 

A variety of main entrance treatments have been incorporated into the residential units in the 
proposed UVPUD project including front porches, side entry/courtyard garages and recessed 
garage doors. Building elevations are provided within the Crooked Lake Preserve Urban 
Village Planned Unit Development Preliminary Development Plan. 

(17) A listing of the specific types of nonresidential uses to be allowed. 

N/A; Nonresidential uses are not proposed within the UVPUD proposal for the project. 

URBAN VILLAGE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT INTENT AND 
REQUIREMENTS 
Development within the urban village future land use classification shall be designed based on an 
urban development pattern which encourages the formation of a suburban village. The standards 
and procedures of the urban village planned unit development are intended to promote flexibility 
of design and to permit planned diversification and integration of uses and structures, while 
retaining in the city commission the absolute authority to establish such limitations and 
regulations as it deems necessary to protect and promote the public health, safety and general 
welfare. Determining whether to require a mixture of residential and non-residential uses and a 
variety of housing types and lot sizes within individual urban village planned unit developments 
will be based on anticipated development patterns and size of property ownerships. Each 
individual urban village planned unit development will not be required to incorporate all uses 
permitted in the urban village planned unit development land use regulations. 

 Through the urban village planned unit development process, which may involve the approval 
of multiple UVPUDs, all development within the urban village future land use classification 
shall follow the general design principles of: (staff conclusions/findings are underlined) 

(1) creating a series of walkable residential neighborhoods; 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
June 28, 2013 

Page 10 
 

Proposed UVPUD includes cross access connection to the properties located to the east and 
west of the subject property for vehicular and pedestrian access, additionally the proposed 
UVPUD features a multi-purpose trail along the property frontage on Marsh Road. 

(2) developing an integrated park and trail system to facilitate pedestrian travel and recreation; 

Proposed UVPUD includes a series of three (3) recreational parks accessible through 
sidewalks which connect to properties located to the east and the west and the multi-purpose 
trail located along the property frontage on Marsh Road. 

(3) developing a comprehensive network of roads and traffic calming solutions to complement 
and support the existing Marsh Road infrastructure; 

Proposed UVPUD provides for cross access connection to properties located to the east and 
west of the subject property and includes construction of a round-a-bout on Marsh Road at 
the main entrance. 

(4) establishing connectivity to natural systems while preserving wetlands and other natural 
resources and protecting water quality and quantity; 

Proposed UVPUD incorporates shoreline preservation through wetland buffering along 
John’s Lake to preserve and protect water quality in John’s Lake. 

(5) creating a mixed-use character through the integration of a diversity of uses; 

N/A; the proposed UVPUD does not provide for non-residential uses. 

(6) creating a focus center within the urban village 

N/A; the proposed UVPUD will be part of the residential community surrounding a future 
commercial village center which will be located west of the subject property. A certain level 
of residential development must occur to support the commercial development. 

(7) The urban village planned unit development shall provide a compact integrated 
development pattern with a park or central feature located within a ¼ mile walking distance 
of the majority of residences in each neighborhood.   

The proposed UVPUD includes three (3) open space/recreation areas, two (2) of which are 
centrally located within the northern portion of the UVPUD site and another centrally 
located within the southern portion of the UVPUD site. 

(8) To ensure adequate housing diversity, urban village planned unit development should 
generally contain a variety of housing types which may include both attached and detached 
housing product with ownership and rental opportunities, as well as live/work housing. 

The proposed UVPUD will contain only single family detached residential units and does 
not include any live work units.  

(9) The street network shall be designed to create a hierarchy of interconnected streets and 
traffic calming solutions to allow travel through and between neighborhoods and beyond the 
urban village planned unit development.  Roadway cross sections shall be designed to 
accommodate multiple modes of transportation. 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
June 28, 2013 

Page 11 
 

The proposed UVPUD will provide cross access connections to properties located to the 
east and west, a round-a-bout at the main entrance on Marsh Road. 

(10) Emphasis shall be placed on pedestrian and bike paths and shall be incorporated in street 
cross sections and open spaces. 

The proposed UVPUD includes a multi-purpose trail along Marsh Road and a fully 
integrated network of sidewalks which will connect and provide cross access between 
properties located to the east and west. 

(11) All development proposals within an urban village planned unit development shall, as 
determined by the city commission, be consistent with the requirements and/or guidelines of 
the Sixth Amendment to the Restated Interlocal Agreement for Joint Planning Area between 
Orange County and the City of Winter Garden (Dated January 24, 2007) as approved by the 
city commission, as such may be amended from time to time.   

The proposed UVPUD is consistent with the Sixth Amendment to the Restated Interlocal 
Agreement for Joint Planning Area between Orange County and the City of Winter Garden.  

(12) All development within the urban village planned unit development shall comply with the 
Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act, and shall meet or exceed the standards of the Resource 
Protection Overlay as established by the City’s Comprehensive Plan. In the event of a 
conflict or conflicts between the Urban Village Planned Unit Development zoning district 
and the Resource Protection Overlay, the Resource Protection Overlay shall control to the 
extent such conflict exists. 

The proposed UVPUD complies with the Wekiva Study Area Resource Protection Overlay 
requirements as stipulated in the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The proposed UVPUD meets 
the Wekiva Open Space requirements, stricter Wekiva drainage requirements and karst 
feature setbacks and buffering. 

(13) Maximum density in the urban village planned unit development for any neighborhood shall 
be four dwelling units per gross acre except in the village center where the density may be 
up to 12 dwelling units per gross acre.  However, certain neighborhoods may use residential 
clustering while maintaining the overall maximum density for the neighborhood. Maximum 
intensity for non residential development is 0.3 floor area ratio. 

The proposed UVPUD development plan will have a gross developable density of 2.02 
dwelling units per acre. 

(14) Stormwater facilities within the urban village residential planned unit development shall 
generally be designed as amenities and low impact design (LID) techniques will be used 
where practical. 

The proposed UVPUD incorporates stormwater facilities and ponds into the design of the 
community through placement of the facilities where they function as both visual features 
and buffers, while also meeting the stricter Wekiva Study Area requirements. 

(15) New development shall connect to City utilities, potable water, sanitary sewer, and 
reclaimed water when available. 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
June 28, 2013 

Page 12 
 

The proposed UVPUD will make connection to city utilities, water, wastewater, and 
reclaimed water at the developer’s expense. 

(16) Residential and nonresidential uses are allowed in the village center and may occupy the 
same building where nonresidential occupies the first floor with residential on the upper 
floors. 

N/A; the proposed UVPUD is not located in the area that will be developed as the village 
and therefore will not have non-residential uses.  

(17) Accessory dwelling units, not to exceed 850 square feet, above garages shall be allowed for 
a maximum of 50% of the residential units in the urban village planned unit development.  
These additional accessory units shall not be counted towards the density. 

The proposed UVPUD does not reference or include plans for accessory dwelling units. 

Consistent with the goal of ensuring the entirety of lands designated with the urban village future 
land use designation develop in such a way as to meet the goals and policies of the 
comprehensive plan, the city commission shall have the flexibility in deciding whether to require 
a mixture of residential and non-residential uses and a variety of housing types and lot sizes 
within individual urban village planned unit developments based on anticipated development 
patterns.   

The urban village planned unit development shall be located in the urban village future land use 
designation as defined in the city’s comprehensive plan, or in such other areas as determined by 
city commission. 

SUMMARY 
City Staff recommend approval of the proposed Ordinance 13-41. Rezoning the subject property 
from City NZ to City UVPUD is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Future Land 
Use Map and land development regulations, and is consistent with the trend of development in 
the area.  
The proposed development of the subject property is consistent with the stipulations and 
guidelines of the Sixth Amendment to the Restated Interlocal Agreement for Joint Planning Area 
between Orange County and the City of Winter Garden which requires that rezoning applications 
or development plans for properties located within the JPA expansion area must be processed as 
Planned Unit Developments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
June 28, 2013 

Page 13 
 

 
MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
16303 Marsh Road 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
June 28, 2013 

Page 14 
 

ZONING MAP 
Marsh Road 

  

Subject Property 
rezone from City NZ 

to City UVPUD 



Crooked Lake Preserve 
16303 Marsh Road- 78.29 +/- acres 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
June 28, 2013 

Page 15 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
16303 Marsh Road 

 
END OF STAFF REPORT 

Subject Property 
Future Land Use: 

Urban Village  



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 1 of 20 

ORDINANCE 13-41 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA REZONING APPROXIMATELY 78.3 ± ACRES OF 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED EAST 
OF WILLIAMS ROAD AND WEST OF AVALON ROAD(CR 
545) ON THE NORTH AND SOUTH SIDE OF MARSH 
ROAD, AT 16303 MARSH ROAD, FROM NO ZONING (NZ) 
TO URBAN VILLAGE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
(UVPUD); PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN UVPUD 
REQUIREMENTS AND DESCRIBING THE DEVELOPMENT 
AS THE CROOKED LAKE PRESERVE URBAN VILLAGE 
PUD; PROVIDING FOR NON-SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the Owner(s) of real property generally described as approximately 
78.3 ± acres of certain real property generally located east of Williams Road and west of 
Avalon Road (CR 545) on the north and south side of Marsh Road, at 16303 Marsh Road 
in Winter Garden, Florida, being more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Property”), desire to rezone their 
property from No Zoning (NZ) to Urban Village Planned Unit Development (UVPUD); 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the 
City Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the adoption 
of this Ordinance and the proposed UVPUD and development of the Property is 
consistent with the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan, the Sixth Amendment 
to the Restated Interlocal Agreement for Joint Planning Area between Orange County 
and the City of Winter Garden, and the City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, further, the City Commission finds that based on competent, 
substantial evidence in the record, the rezoning approved by this Ordinance meets all 
applicable criteria for rezoning the Property to Urban Village Planned Unit Development 
(UVPUD) contained within the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan and the 
Code of Ordinances, therefore; 
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Rezoning.  The above “Whereas” clauses constitute findings by the 
City Commission.  After due notice and public hearing, the zoning classification of the 
Property, as described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, is hereby rezoned from No Zoning 
(NZ) to Urban Village Planned Unit Development (UVPUD) in the City of Winter Garden, 
Florida subject to the following conditions, provisions and restrictions: 
 
 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 2 of 20 

a. Conceptual Plan- All development on the Property must substantially 
conform to the requirements identified in the Crooked Lake Preserve Urban 
Village Planned Unit Development Preliminary Plan attached hereto as 
Exhibit “B.” Should any conflict be found between this Ordinance and the 
Crooked Lake Preserve Urban Village Planned Unit Development 
Preliminary Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, then the standards and 
conditions established by this Ordinance shall control.  
 

b. Zoning- Unless specifically noted elsewhere in Exhibit “B” attached hereto, 
all residential development on the Property must comply with the general 
zoning requirements of the R-1 Single Family Residential District for any 
structures, including but not limited to swimming pools, screen rooms, 
accessory structures and buildings, that are developed on the Property.  All 
uses not specifically permitted by this Ordinance are prohibited.  

 
c. JPA- Unless specifically noted elsewhere in Exhibit “B” attached hereto, all 

development of the Property must conform to the requirements of the Sixth 
Amendment to the Restated Interlocal Agreement for Joint Planning Area 
between Orange County and the City of Winter Garden dated January 24, 
2007.  

 
d. Design Criteria/Architectural Standards-  
 

1. Lot Size- Minimum lot width shall be 60 feet. 
 

2. Building Height- Maximum building height shall be 35 feet. 
 

3. Minimum Living Area- Minimum living area for each residential unit 
shall be 1,500 square feet for lots less than 90 feet wide and 2,000 
square feet for lots greater than or equal to 90 feet wide.  

 
4. Signage- All signage shall be reviewed and permitted by the City of 

Winter Garden. All proposed signage, with the exception of street 
and traffic signs, shall be submitted for review and approval as part 
of the Development Agreement for the Property.  

 
5. Setbacks and Required Yards-  

 
• 60-89 foot wide lots: side yard setbacks shall be no less than 

5 feet and shall be unobstructed by any mechanical 
equipment including, but not limited to, AC units, pool 
equipment, water filtration systems, gas tanks, propane tanks, 
and any other utility or service equipment; side yard setback 
on the street side of a corner lot shall be no less than 15 feet; 
rear yard setback shall be no less than 20 feet; and front yard 
setback shall be no less than 20 feet and no greater than 25 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 3 of 20 

feet. Any landscaping or fencing installed within the 5 foot 
side yard setback shall be designed and constructed so as 
not to interfere with any easement function. 
 

• 90 foot wide lots and larger: side yard setback shall be no less 
than 7.5 feet; side yard setback on the street side of a corner 
lot shall be no less than 15 feet; rear yard setback shall be no 
less than 30 feet; and front yard setback shall be no less than 
25 feet. Any landscaping or fencing installed within the 7.5 
foot side yard setback shall be designed and constructed so 
as not to interfere with any easement function. 
 

6. Residential Design Criteria-  
All development on the Property must maintain the same general 
design criteria and architectural characteristics as the Building 
Elevations a attached hereto as Exhibit “C”.  

7. Common Recreation and Open Space-  
The Property is located within the Resource Protection Overlay, and 
in compliance with the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan 
Future Land Use Element Policies 1-3.1.7 and 1-3.1.8 will provide no 
less than 25% Wekiva Study Area Open Space. 
To the greatest extent possible, 5% of the developable area of the 
Property shall be set aside for active, dry-land recreational use. In 
the event that this requirement cannot be met wholly or in part, then 
a financial contribution in accordance with Chapter 110, Article V, 
Division 2 of the City Code of Ordinances shall be made to the City 
Recreation Fund to fulfill the requirement.  

 
e. Staff Conditions- All development on the Property must comply with the 

following conditions: 
 

1. A minimum 25 foot wide landscape buffer shall be provided along 
all shared property boundary lines; the buffer shall be located within 
an easement to be granted to and maintained by the HOA to be 
created for this Project prior to plat approval. The landscape buffer 
easement shall remain open space and be unobstructed by any 
accessory structures, swimming pools, patios, fences, mechanical 
equipment including, but not limited to, AC units, pool equipment, 
water filtration systems, gas tanks, propane tanks, and any other 
utility or service equipment.  The landscape buffer easement shall 
be shown on the plat and provisions incorporating the conditions of 
this paragraph shall be included in the Plat notes, Declaration of 
Covenants, Restrictions and Conditions and in the deed for each 
individual lot affected by the easement in a form acceptable to the 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 4 of 20 

City Attorney.   
2. At its expense, Owner shall permit, design and construct a round-a-

bout on Marsh Road at the entry point to the Project.  Size and 
configuration of roundabout on Marsh Road will be determined at 
time of final engineering; radius, number of lanes, etc. shall safely 
accommodate traffic and be reviewed by the City’s round-a-bout 
Consultant.  At Owner’s expense and no cost to the City, Owner 
shall cause the conveyance of right-of-way to the City as may 
needed, as determined by the City, to accommodate the Marsh 
Road round-a-bout and such conveyance shall be free and clear of 
all encumbrances.  No impact fee credits are to be given for such 
conveyance and road improvements, as this traffic improvement 
directly benefits the Project and mitigates impacts caused by the 
Project.  

3. Minimum 5 foot wide utility and drainage easements shall be 
provided on each side lot line and dedicated to the City. 

4. If gated, streets will be private and maintained by the HOA.  While 
portions of the right-of-way may be dedicated to the City, 
maintenance of special pavements, landscaping, hardscaping, etc. 
shall be performed by the HOA under a right-of-way maintenance 
agreement.  This would include the roundabout island.  If street 
trees are allowed, the HOA will be responsible for their installation, 
maintenance and removal if necessary. 

5. Docks shall comply with City of Winter Garden Ordinance 11-20 (as 
codified in Chapter 118 of the City Code) and other applicable code 
provisions. 

6. Consistent with other development that the City has approved on 
the Marsh Road corridor, additional right-of-way conveyance may 
be required on Marsh Road for the round-a-bout, etc. 

7. As shown, the proposed stormwater pond for Marsh Road/CR 545 
is to be granted to the City as a drainage easement, to be 
constructed and maintained by the City. 

8. Upon application for Preliminary Plat review, the building setbacks 
for each lot including specific details on what primary and auxiliary 
uses will be allowed such as pools, porches, patios, docks, etc. 
shall be identified. 

9. All irrigation shall be designed to be supplied by reclaimed water 
(minimum 8 inch internal main size). 

10. Typical Pavement Section & General Notes:  Location and type of 
street trees will be reviewed with final engineering plans.  If allowed, 
street trees will be the responsibility of the HOA, not the City, 
regardless if the project is gated/private or public.  



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 5 of 20 

11. All proposed easements shall be 30 foot minimum width for 
sanitary, water and storm; improvements shall be centered within 
the easement.  Common areas not abutting right-of-way shall 
include a tract (not easement) for access and maintenance. 

12. The 100 year flood boundary is shown in Exhibit “B” to encroach on 
many of the lots abutting Johns Lake.  A LOMR shall be filed with 
FEMA as a condition of Final Plat approval for any areas requiring 
fill within the 100 year flood zone.  Fill within the 100 year flood zone 
will only be allowed if compensating storage is provided. 

13. The Owner is responsible for meeting all provisions of ADA and 
Florida Accessibility Code. 

14. All work shall conform to City of Winter Garden standards and 
specifications. 

15. The City of Winter Garden will inspect private site improvements 
only to the extent that they connect to City owned/maintained 
systems (roadways, drainage, utilities, etc.).  It is the responsibility 
of the Owner and Design Engineer to ensure that privately owned 
and maintained systems are constructed to the intended 
specifications.  The City is not responsible for the operation and 
maintenance of privately owned systems, to include, but not be 
limited to, roadways, parking lots, drainage, stormwater ponds or 
on-site utilities. 

16. The Contractor is responsible for the notification, location and 
protection of all utilities that may exist within the project limits. 

17. No fill or runoff will be allowed to discharge onto adjacent 
properties; existing drainage patterns shall not be altered. The City 
of Winter Garden is not granting rights or easements for drainage 
from, or onto, property owned by others.  Obtaining permission, 
easements or other approvals that may be required to drain onto 
private property is the Owner/Developer's responsibility.  Should the 
flow of stormwater runoff from, or onto adjacent properties be 
unreasonable or cause problems, the City will not be responsible 
and any corrective measures required will be the responsibility of 
the Owner.  Site construction shall adhere to the City of Winter 
Garden erosion and sediment control requirements as contained in 
Chapter 106 - Stormwater.  If approval is granted by the City of 
Winter Garden, it does not waive any permits that may be required 
by federal, state, regional, county, municipal or other agencies that 
may have jurisdiction. 

18. After final engineering plan approval, a preconstruction meeting will 
be required prior to any commencement of construction. The 
applicant shall provide an erosion control and street lighting plan at 
the preconstruction meeting and shall pay all engineering review 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 6 of 20 

and inspection fees prior to construction.  Inspection fees in the 
amount of 2.25% of the cost of all site improvements shall be paid 
prior to issuance of the building permit. 
 

19. The recent extension, installation and oversizing of water, sewer 
and reclaimed water mains along Marsh Road were done for the 
benefit of this Project and other proposed Projects along Marsh 
Road. Applicant shall be responsible for reimbursement of its 
proportionate fair share for the previous extension of water, sewer 
and reclaimed water mains along Marsh Road installed by the 
Waterside at John’s Lake UVPUD development in the manner to be 
addressed by the Developer’s Agreement, or by other agreement 
acceptable to the City Manager.  Such reimbursement shall occur 
no later than prior to obtaining certificates of occupancy for any 
buildings/units for the project.  
 

 SECTION 2: General Requirements. 
 

a. Development Agreement- A Developer’s Agreement shall be drafted, 
approval obtained and recorded prior to approval of Preliminary Plat of the 
Property. The Developer’s Agreement shall address matters to include, but 
not limited to, developer’s reimbursement for utility line extensions along 
Marsh Road, project phasing, the granting of a permanent drainage 
easement over, under and through Tract J (3.26 +/- acres) to the City of 
Winter Garden for the construction, operation and maintenance of a 
stormwater management system benefiting the Project and Marsh Road 
and C.R. 545 right-of-way improvements, round-a-bout and other right-of-
way improvements and right-of-way conveyances, other public 
infrastructure improvements, lift station, internal utility lines, community 
subdivision infrastructure improvements requirements of Chapter 110, City 
Code, and impact fees. Owner shall cause mortgage lien holders to execute 
a joinder, consent and subordination of their lien interests to the 
Developer’s Agreement for recording in the public records concurrently with 
the Developer’s Agreement.  
 

b. Stand Alone Clause- Each phase of development of the Property must 
operate as an individual unit in that each particular phase will be able to 
stand-alone in the event that no other phase is developed. 

 
c. Land Development Approvals and Permits- This Ordinance does not 

require the City to issue any permit or approval for development, 
construction, preliminary plat, final plat, building permit, or other matter by 
the City relating to the Property or the project or any portion thereof. These 
and any other required City development approvals and permits shall be 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 7 of 20 

processed and issued by the City in accordance with procedures set forth in 
the City’s Code of Ordinances and subject to this Ordinance.  

 
 
 
d. Amendments- Minor amendments to this Ordinance will be achieved by 

Resolution of the City Commission of the City of Winter Garden. Major 
amendments to this Ordinance will require approval of the City Commission 
of the City of Winter Garden by Ordinance. 
 

e. Expiration/Extension- Expiration of this UVPUD shall be governed in 
accordance with Section 118-830, City of Winter Garden Code of 
Ordinances. Time extensions may be granted in accordance with Section 
118-829, City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances. 

 
 SECTION 3: Zoning Map.  The City Planner is hereby authorized and directed to 
amend the Official Winter Garden Zoning Map in accordance with the provisions of this 
ordinance. 
 
 SECTION 4: Non-Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held 
invalid, then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void. 
 
 SECTION 5: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
adoption at its second reading. 
  
 
FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
, 2013. 

 
ADOPTED this  day of,  , 2013,  by the City Commission 
of the City of Winter Garden, Florida. 

 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 

 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 8 of 20 

 
 

Exhibit “A” 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 9 of 20 

 
Exhibit “B” 

 

COVER PAGE 
 

 
URBAN VILLAGE PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT PRELIMINARY PLAN 
 

CROOKED LAKE PRESERVE 
 

REVISED JUNE 2013 
 
 

(4 PAGES - ATTACHED) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 10 of 20 

 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 11 of 20 

 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 12 of 20 

 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 13 of 20 

 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 14 of 20 

Exhibit “C” 
 

COVER PAGE 
 

 
TYPICAL BUILDING ELEVATIONS  

 
 

CROOKED LAKE PRESERVE 
 
 
 

(6 PAGES - ATTACHED) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 15 of 20 

 
 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 16 of 20 

 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 17 of 20 

 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 18 of 20 

 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 19 of 20 

 
 



 
Ordinance 13-41 

Page 20 of 20 

 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 10 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  June 27, 2013 MEETING DATE: July 1, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 55 N. Dillard Street (REZONING) 
 PROJECT NAME Welltrax 
 PARCEL ID# 14-22-27-2088-00-070 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting to rezone their 0.27 ± acre property located at 

55 N. Dillard Street from R-2(Residential District) to C-1 (Central 
Commercial District). 

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Stephen D. Dunegan 
  
CURRENT ZONING: R-2 (Residential District) 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: C-1 (Central Commercial District) 
  
CURRENT FLU: TD (Traditional Downtown) 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
SUMMARY: 
 The request for rezoning is to eliminate the need for the special 

exception permit which was granted in 2006 for medical and 
wellness services in the R-2 Zoning District and allow for future 
expansion of the commercial and residential uses on the property. 
The City has recently amended the C-1 Zoning District to allow 
upper story residential as a permitted use which will allow the 
property to continue operating as it has been since 2006 and 
expand the facilities on the site without the need for any further 
special exception permit. 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff Recommends approval of Ordinance 13-44 rezoning property 

located at 55 N. Dillard Street from R-2 (Residential District) to C-1 
(Central Commercial District) subject to the conditions of the 
attached Staff Report with City Commission first reading 
scheduled for July 11, 2013. 

  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 Ordinance 13-44 
 



LOCATION MAP 

55 N Dillard Street 

REZONING 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO: PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY: LAURA SMITH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE: JUNE 27, 2013 
SUBJECT: REZONING 
  55 N. Dillard Street  (WELLTRAX) 
  PARCEL ID # 14-22-27-2088-00-070 
    
APPLICANT: Stephen D. Dunegan 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property, generally located at the northeast corner of the intersection of N. Dillard 
Street and Agnes Street at 55 N. Dillard Street, is approximately .27± acres. The map below 
depicts the location of the subject property within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits: 

 



N. Dillard Street - 55 
(Welltrax) Rezoning - Staff Report 

 June 27, 2013 
Page 2 

 

 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone .27± acre property which is located within the City of 
Winter Garden and carries a Future Land Use Designation of TD (Traditional Downtown) on the 
Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan from R-2 (Residential District) to C-1 
(Central Commercial District). 

EXISTING USE 
The subject property was granted a Special Exception Permit in 2006 to operate a Clinic 
providing medical and wellness related services with an upper story apartment. The structure 
contains a 2,167 square foot upper story apartment and a 1,701 square foot first story commercial 
office space. The property also contains five standard parking spaces and one handicapped 
parking space for the commercial office space and a 2 car covered carport for the upper story 
apartment. 

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The properties located to the north and east of the subject property are single family residences 
zoned R-2 in the City of Winter Garden. The properties located to the south of the subject 
property include a commercial office/retail property zoned C-1 in the City of Winter Garden and 
a single family residence zoned R-2 in the City of Winter Garden. The property located to the 
west of the subject property is zoned R-2 and contains the First Baptist Church and associated 
uses. 

PROPOSED USE 
The applicant does not propose any changes to the existing use of the property at this time. The 
request for rezoning is to eliminate the need for the special exception permit which was granted 
in 2006 and allow for future expansion of the commercial and residential uses on the property. 
The City has recently amended the C-1 Zoning District to allow upper story residential as a 
permitted use which will allow the property to continue operating as it has been since 2006 and 
expand the facilities on the site without the need for any further special exception permit.  

SUMMARY 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Ordinance.  Rezoning the subject property from R-2 
to C-1 is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and surrounding property uses, and the 
adjacent property owners should not be negatively impacted since the property is currently being 
used as a commercial and upper story residential facility.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



N. Dillard Street - 55 
(Welltrax) Rezoning - Staff Report 

 June 27, 2013 
Page 3 

 

 
 

 
MAPS 

AERIAL PHOTO 
55 N. Dillard Street 



N. Dillard Street - 55 
(Welltrax) Rezoning - Staff Report 

 June 27, 2013 
Page 4 

 

 
 

ZONING MAP 
55 N Dillard Street 

  
 



N. Dillard Street - 55 
(Welltrax) Rezoning - Staff Report 

 June 27, 2013 
Page 5 

 

 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
55 N Dillard Street 

 
 



N. Dillard Street - 55 
(Welltrax) Rezoning - Staff Report 

 June 27, 2013 
Page 6 

 

 
 

EXISTING SITE LAYOUT 
55 N Dillard Street 

 
 

 



N. Dillard Street - 55 
(Welltrax) Rezoning - Staff Report 

 June 27, 2013 
Page 7 

 

 
 

EXISTING 1ST FLOOR INTERIOR LAYOUT 
55 N Dillard Street 

 
EXISTING 2ND FLOOR INTERIOR LAYOUT 

55 N Dillard Street 
 

 
END OF STAFF REPORT 



 
Ordinance 13-44 

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE 13-44 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA, REZONING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS APPROXIMATELY 0.27± 
ACRES OF LAND LOCATED AT 55 NORTH DILLARD 
STREET, FROM R-2 (RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO  C-1 
(CENTRAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT); PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 0.27 ± acres of 
land located at 55 North Dillard Street, and legally described on Exhibit “A” of this ordinance has 
petitioned the City to rezone said property from R-2 Residential District to the C-1 Central 
Commercial District zoning classification; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the City 
Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the rezoning approved by 
this Ordinance is consistent with the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, further, the City Commission finds that based on competent, substantial 
evidence in the record, the rezoning approved by this Ordinance meets all applicable criteria for 
rezoning the Property to C-1 Central Commercial District contained within the City of Winter 
Garden Comprehensive Plan and the Code of Ordinances; therefore 
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Rezoning.  The above “Whereas” clauses constitute findings by the City 
Commission.  After due notice and public hearing, the zoning classification of real property 
legally described on Exhibit “A,” is hereby rezoned from R-2 Residential District to C-1 Central 
Commercial District in the City of Winter Garden, Florida.  
 
 SECTION 2: Zoning Map.  The City Planner is hereby authorized and directed to amend 
the Official Winter Garden Zoning Map in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 
 
 SECTION 3: Non-Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 
then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void. 
 
 SECTION 4: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption at its 
second reading. 
 
  

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  
 

, 2013. 
 
 
 
ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2013, by the City Commission of the City of 
Winter Garden, Florida. 
 



 
Ordinance 13-44 

Page 2 of 3 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 



 
Ordinance 13-44 

Page 3 of 3 

Exhibit "A" 
  

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
PARCEL ID#: 14-22-27-2088-00-070 
 
LOT 7, DILLARD SUBDIVISION NO. 3, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK R, PAGE 36 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 11 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  June 27, 2013 MEETING DATE: July 1, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: Garden Commerce Parkway (REZONING-PID) 
 PROJECT NAME Winter Garden Commerce Center 
 PARCEL ID# 24-22-27-9385-00-200, 24-22-27-9385-00-190, 24-22-27-

9385-00-180, 24-22-27-9385-00-170, 24-22-27-9385-00-
160, 24-22-27-9385-00-120, 24-22-27-9385-00-110, 24-22-
27-9385-00-100, 24-22-27-0000-00-021, 24-22-27-9385-00-
090, 24-22-27-9385-00-080, 24-22-27-9385-00-070, 24-22-
27-9385-00-060, 24-22-27-9385-00-050, 24-22-27-9385-00-
040, 24-22-27-9385-00-030, 24-22-27-9385-00-020, and 
24-22-27-9385-00-010 

  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting to rezone a portion of the Industrial 

Subdivision known as the Winter Garden Commerce Center from I-1 
(Light Industrial and Warehousing District) to PID (Planed Industrial 
District)  

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: PNC Bank, National Association 
  
CURRENT ZONING: I-1 (Light Industrial and Warehousing District) 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: PID (Planed Industrial District) 
  
CURRENT FLU: Industrial 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
SUMMARY: 
 The applicant is requesting to rezone a portion of the Industrial 

Subdivision known as the Winter Garden Commerce Center from 
I-1 (Light Industrial and Warehousing District) to PID (Planed 
Industrial District) 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff requests that the proposed rezoning be tabled to a future 

meeting with a date certain of August 5, 2013. 
 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 12 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  June 27, 2013 MEETING DATE: July 1, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: Oakland Park (PRELIMINARY PLAT) 
 PROJECT NAME Oakland Park Phase 2 
 PARCEL ID# 21-22-27-0000-00-094 
  
ISSUE: Applicant is requesting approval of a Preliminary Plat for Oakland Park 

PUD Phase 2 to allow platting of 80 single-family lots in two phases.  The 
subject property is located within the City of Winter Garden municipal 
limits, and carries the zoning designation PUD.  The subject property is 
designated Suburban Residential and Low Density Residential on the 
Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan. 

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Lake Apopka 2012, LLC 
  
CURRENT ZONING: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: Suburban Residential & Low Density Residential 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
SUMMARY: 
 Applicant proposes Preliminary Plat for 80 single-family lots.  The 

proposed Preliminary Plat is consistent with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan and the City of Winter Garden Code of 
Ordinances.  The proposed Preliminary Plat is consistent with the 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) Zoning of the property. 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 City staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of 80 

single-family lots in Oakland Park Phase 2 subject to the 
conditions of the attached Staff Report. 

  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Submit Final Plat and Final Engineering Plans for review. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 Preliminary Plat 
 



LOCATION MAP 

 

 

OAKLAND PARK PHASE 2 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 

 



 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:   LAURA SMITH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE:   JUNE 27, 2013 
SUBJECT:   PRELIMINARY PLAT 
   Oakland Park Phase II (23.7+/- ACRES) 
    PARCEL ID #  21-22-27-0000-00-094       
 
APPLICANT: Lake Apopka 2012, LLC  
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property, east and west of Lake Brim Drive on the north and south side of the West 
Orange Trail, is approximately 23.7± acres. The map below depicts the location of the subject 
property within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits. 

 



Oakland Park Phase II 
Lake Brim Drive (23.7 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
June 27, 2013 

Page 2 
 

 

The applicant is requesting approval of Preliminary Plat of the 23.7± acre property which is 
Phase 2A and Phase 2B of the Oakland Park PUD Subdivision for 63 single family residential 
lots in Phase 2A and 17 single family lots in Phase 2B. The subject property is located within the 
City of Winter Garden municipal limits, and carries the zoning designation PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) in the City of Winter Garden. The subject property is designated Suburban 
Residential and Low Density Residential on the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive 
Plan. 

EXISTING USE 
The 189.9± acre Oakland Park PUD subdivision has been partially platted; Phase 1 was platted 
in multiple phases, Phase 1A contained 62.79 acres and 64 single family residential lots, Phase 
1B1A contained 16.136 acres and 17 single family residential lots and Phase 1B1B contained 
18.130 acres and 56 single family residential lots. The remaining 92.844 ± acres of unplatted 
land are proposed to be platted in multiple phases; the 23.7 ± acre portion of the remaining 
unplatted land that is located just north and south of the West Orange Trail and east and west of 
Lake Brim Drive is the subject area of the proposed Preliminary Plat and is proposed to include 
63 single family residential lots in Oakland Park Phase 2A and 17 single family lots in Oakland 
Park Phase 2B.  

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The Oakland Park Property is bordered on the north by Lake Apopka, the properties located to 
the east are made up of a single family residential subdivision (R-1) and a commercial 
warehousing facility (R-1) within the City of Winter Garden, and Tildenville Elementary School 
(A-1) and several single family residences (A-1) located in Unincorporated Orange County. The 
Oakland Park Property abuts property on the west side, which they also own, located within the 
Town of Oakland municipal limits. The properties located to the south of the Oakland Park 
Property consist of single family residential properties (R-1)  and vacant unimproved commercial 
properties along SR 50 (PCD & C-2) within the City of Winter Garden, and single family 
residential properties (A-1 & A-2) within Unincorporated Orange County. 
 

PROPOSED USE 
The applicant is requesting preliminary plat approval to move forward with development plans 
and the final plat.  The preliminary plat will subdivide the 23.7± acre Phase 2 of the Oakland 
Park PUD into a Phase 2A containing 63 single family residential lots and a Phase 2B containing 
17 single family residential lots. 
 

SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends conditional approval of the proposed Preliminary Plat subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. Street B, at Lot 174, is showing a non-radiused corner which will need to be addressed to 
show sufficient turning movement, etc.  Applicant shall make this adjustment with the 
final Engineering Plans. 

2. A Tree Removal Permit issued by the City of Winter Garden Building Department will 
be required prior to final plan approval. 

Conditional approval of the Preliminary Plat will allow the owner to proceed with development 
plans as well as the final plat. 



Oakland Park Phase II 
Lake Brim Drive (23.7 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
June 27, 2013 

Page 3 
 

 

MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
Oakland Park Phase 2 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Oakland Park Phase II 
Lake Brim Drive (23.7 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
June 27, 2013 

Page 4 
 

 

ZONING MAP 
Oakland Park Phase 2 

 
 

 



Oakland Park Phase II 
Lake Brim Drive (23.7 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
June 27, 2013 

Page 5 
 

 

FUTURE LAND USE  MAP 
Oakland Park Phase 2 

 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 































THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 13 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  June 28, 2013 MEETING DATE: July 1, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 17001 Marsh Road (LOT SPLIT) 
 PROJECT NAME Waterside at John’s Lake 
 PARCEL ID# 06-23-27-0000-00-003 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting a Lot Spit to create two new parcels. as part of 

the Settlement Agreement between the City of Special Exception Permit 
to allow for the property located at 1101 S. Park Avenue to allow for the 
use of a  

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Waterside at John’s Lake, LLC 
  
CURRENT ZONING: UVPUD Urban Village Planned Unit Development 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: Urban Village 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 Applicant proposes to split two existing parcels into two new lots 

as part of the Settlement Agreement between the City of Winter 
Garden, Waterside at John’s Lake, the Lindsay’s, and the 
McKinnon Corporation.  The two new lots will be used as an 
access driveway and a buffer area, and will be sold to the 
Lindsay’s.  

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of the proposed lot split subject to the 

following conditions: 
1. These lots shall be conveyed to Ivan and Mala Lindsay.  

Conveyance of these lots to Ivan and Mala Lindsay shall be 
done by using the special warranty deed forms that are 
attached to the Settlement Agreement between the City of 
Winter Garden, Waterside at Johns Lake, the Lindsay’s, 
McKinnon Groves, LLP, and the McKinnon Corporation, 
which include deed restrictions.  

2. The Lindsay’s are responsible for coordinating with the 



Orange County Tax Collector and Property Appraiser to 
combine these lots with their existing property. 

3. No building can occur on these lots other than driveways 
(built with brick pavers, concrete, or asphalt) and 
landscaping. 

  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 If Planning and Zoning Board approves, file with the Orange 

County Property Appraiser’s Office and Office of Public Records. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

Waterside at John’s Lake 
 

LOT SPLIT 
 

 

 



P&Z : PH12-001 
 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
TO:  PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:  STEVE PASH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE:  June 27, 2013 
SUBJECT:  LOT SPLIT 
   17001 Marsh Road 
   PARCEL ID # 06-23-27-0000-00-003 
 
APPLICANT:  Thomas Sullivan – Lowndes Law Firm 
  
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the request to allow a lot split on property located at 17001 
Marsh Road for compliance with the City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and 
Comprehensive Plan. 

The subject property consistists of two parcels which are part of a recently approved UVPUD, 
located on the north side of Marsh Road, west of Avalon Road and east of Williams Road and is 
approximately 84.4 ± acres. The map below depicts the location of the subject property within the 
City of Winter Garden municipal limits.  



17001 Marsh Road – Lot Split 
Staff Report 
July 1, 2013 

Page 2 

 
 

 

CURRENT USE AND ZONING 
The subject property was recently rezoned to UVPUD and a Preliminary Plat was recently 
approved to develop the property with 305 single-family homes.  

 
CODE REFERENCE 
Sec. 110-96.  Proposed subdivision of existing lot. 

(a)   Whenever a proposed subdivision is a proposal for the division of a single existing lot into 
two lots, in lieu of complying with division 3 of this article, the subdivider may conform to the 
procedural requirements set out in this division or he may comply with the procedure for 
subdivision or resubdivision contained in this chapter at the applicant's option. This procedure 
shall not apply to a subdivision into more than two lots or additional lot splits on contiguous land 
or within the same existing subdivision. The intention being that this procedure may only be used 
once as it pertains to all or any portion of the lands involved in or previously utilizing or subject 
to this procedure. 

(b)   A subdivider shall apply to the city manager on an application form, promulgated by the 
director of planning, for the subdivision of a single existing lot into two lots, stating the 
subdivider's plans for development with the following minimum criteria: 

(1)   A sketch showing the lot size, location of proposed buildings, location of easements, 
names of bordering streets, building setbacks, names and locations of all bodies of water, 
marshlands, drain fields, and all other waterways and watercourses abutting or 
encroaching upon subject property. This sketch must also show existing buildings and lot 
dimensions. 

(2)   A brief description of all utilities and city services, including sewers, potable water 
facilities, and fire hydrants electric and telephone poles, streetlights, storm drains and any 
other utilities or services relevant to the maintenance of subject properties. 

(3)   A listing of the names and addresses of the record owners abutting subject property. 

(4)   A boundary survey of the lands subject to this procedure, as existing (i.e., prior to 
the proposed lot split) and as proposed (i.e., after the proposed lot split), performed and 
prepared under the responsible direction and supervision of a professional surveyor and 
mapper shall be certified to and submitted to the city. Said surveys shall include the 
depiction of existing improvements thereon. 

(c)   Lot split procedure. Once the application is determined to be complete, the city staff shall 
review the request for compliance with the code (e.g. compliance with lot dimensions 
requirements, setbacks for existing buildings etc.). 

Upon review by the city staff, with or without conditions or restrictions, the application, together 
with the recommendations, conditions and restrictions, shall be presented to the planning and 
zoning board at its next regular meeting or session, following action by the city staff, for 
approval or disapproval. The planning and zoning board may take the following actions: 

(1)   Approve the application as recommended by the city staff. 



17001 Marsh Road – Lot Split 
Staff Report 
July 1, 2013 

Page 3 

 
 

(2)   Approve the application, deleting or supplementing the conditions and restrictions of 
the city staff. 

(3)   Approve the application, adding conditions and restrictions as determined by the 
planning and zoning board. 

(4)   Disapprove the application. 

The planning and zoning board shall have the option to take such action as it deems necessary 
and proper upon one hearing. 

 

SUMMARY 
The applicant has submitted a request for a lot split to divide two existing parcels (prior to the 
Preliminary Plat) into four new parcels.   

The proposed lots are a portion of the existing parcels that make up part of a new subdivision 
(Waterside on Johns Lake).  The portion of the subdivision where the lot split is taking place is 
made up of two parcels.  The proposed lot split will create two new lots that will be sold to the 
neighboring property owner (Ivan and Mala Lindsay) as part of a settlement agreement.  One of the 
parcels is an access point from the Waterside roads to the existing house, and the other parcel is a 
buffer area where the neighbors (Lindsays) already have a driveway constructed.  Allowing this lot 
split will not create any non conforming lots, it assists with providing ownership of the access 
driveway to the Lindsays, allows the Lindsays to keep the access road they have constructed 
through part of their property, and helps maintain the buffer to the Waterside on Johns Lake 
development. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

The proposed lot split will not create any non conforming lots in the Preliminary Plat, and does 
not affect the approved development.  Staff recommends approval of the proposed lot split 
subject to the following conditions: 

1. These lots shall be conveyed to Ivan and Mala Linday.  Conveyance of these lots to Ivan 
and Mala Lindsay shall be done by using the special warranty deed forms that are 
attached to the Settlement Agreement between the City of Winter Garden, Waterside at 
Johns Lake, LLC, Ivan and Mala Lindsay, McKinnon Corporation, and McKinnnon 
Groves, LLP, which include deed restrictions.  

2. The Lindsays are responsible for coordinating with the Orange County Tax Collector and 
Property Appraiser to combine these lots with their existing property. 

3. No building can occur on these lots other than driveways (built with brick pavers, 
concrete, or asphalt) and landscaping. 

NEXT STEP 
 
If Planning and Zoning Board approves, file with the Orange County Property Appraiser’s Office 
and Office of Public Records. 

 
 
 



17001 Marsh Road – Lot Split 
Staff Report 
July 1, 2013 

Page 4 

 
 

AERIAL PHOTO 
17001 Marsh Road 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



17001 Marsh Road – Lot Split 
Staff Report 
July 1, 2013 

Page 5 

 
 

ZONING  MAP 
17001 Marsh Road 

 

Buffer Area Parcel 

Access Driveway 
Parcel 



17001 Marsh Road – Lot Split 
Staff Report 
July 1, 2013 

Page 6 

 
 

PROPOSED PARCEL A (ACCESS DRIVEWAY) 
17001 MARSH ROAD 

 

 



17001 Marsh Road – Lot Split 
Staff Report 
July 1, 2013 

Page 7 

 
 

 
PROPOSED PARCEL B ( BUFFER AREA) 

17001 3 Seminole Street 
 

 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 


	Item # 4.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM
	Memo P & Z Board-Sunshine Law Application 6-19-13.pdf
	I. Scope of the Sunshine Law
	Meeting Subject to the Sunshine Law
	Abstaining From Voting at Public Meeting




	Item # 5.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Item # 6.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Item # 7.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Item # 8.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Item # 9.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Item # 10.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Item # 11.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Item # 12.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Item # 13.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM
	Marsh Road 17001 (Lot Split) P&Z Staff Report.pdf
	Staff Recommendation
	Next Step



